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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREREUREEE T ®RAIA

On behalf of the board (the “Board”
(the”Directors”) of Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding

) of directors

Limited (the”Company”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

OVERALL REVIEW

In 2023, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$1,830,186,000
(2022: HK$1,665,515,000) and a gross profit of
HK$567,574,000 (2022: HK$508,488,000). The Group
recorded a profit for the year of HK$162,209,000 (2022:
HK$50,832,000).
market remained strong in 2023, both sales revenue and

As demand in the global general aviation

corresponding gross profit of the Group's general aviation
aircraft piston engine business maintained an upward trend.
The significant increase in profit for the year ended 31
December 2023 was mainly attributable to (a) the recognition
of deferred tax credit in relation to the tax losses of previous
years by a subsidiary of the Company in the United States,
which has started to generate taxable profits in 2023; and (b)
the profit for 2022 included an impairment of other intangible
assets.

Basic earnings per share amounted to HK1.74 cents (2022:
HKO0.55 cent). The return on equity, calculated on the basis of
profit attributable to owners of the Company as a percentage
of equity attributable to owners of the Company, was 5.4%
(2022: 1.8%).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group has only one reportable operating
segment, the general aviation aircraft piston engine business,
which engages in the design, development and production of
general aviation aircraft piston engines and spare parts as well
as the provision of aftermarket services and support for piston
engines.

Against the backdrop of tightening monetary policies by most
central banks, the global economy has shown resilience beyond
expectations in 2023. The growth of Global Gross Domestic
Product (“GDP") existed a surprisingly sharp rise, with real GDP
growth at 2.5%. However, in the last quarter of 2023, the
growth of the global economy began to slow down.

Despite a 525 basis point increase in interest rates since March
2022, the United States economy remained more resilient
than most forecasts. Retail data has indicated that consumers
are continuing to demonstrate sustained purchasing power.
Meanwhile, there are signs that the growth of economy is
slowing down, and the household consumption sector is
beginning to be affected. In 2023, the economy added 2.7
million jobs, which equivalent to 225,000 jobs per month,
representing the strongest annual growth in employment since
2015 (excluding the pandemic period from 2020 to 2022). This
also represents that the growth of job exceeded the levels in
2019 by nearly 40%.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FEBEUREREANRE D

Although the inflation rates of global and the United States
were 6.8% and 3.4% respectively in 2023, there were
favorable factors to moderate the growth of revenue and
aviation activities on a year-on-year basis. These factors
included the avoidance of labor market retrenchment, easing
inflation and labor cost compression. According to the 2023
report of General Aviation Manufacturers Association, all
categories of general aviation aircraft showed a strong growth
in both delivery volumes and sales revenue. The report revealed
that 1,682 units of piston-powered fixed-wing aircrafts were
delivered globally, representing 11.8% growth yearly.

Despite the challenges posed by significant inflation, rising
raw material prices, and labor costs, the Group continued its
upward trajectory last year. We experienced notable growth
across various aspects, including order volumes, deliveries,
profits, and technological innovations.

Implementation of Blue Marlin Project

We are pleased to announce the successful completion of the
Blue Marlin project, a significant milestone that reflects the
dedication and hard work of our entire United States team.
This project aims to enhance the efficiency of manufacturing
general aviation aircraft piston engines and parts, reduce
delivery lead time, and advance automation production. The
factories of Mobile and Fairhope in Alabama, the United States
achieved the highest delivery volumes in 2023, the best record
recently.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Research and Development

Our engines and parts offer exceptional reliability and
have instilled confidence among customers. Our Original
Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM") customers, aircraft owners,
and operators expressed high satisfaction with the flight
performance of our products and the value we created.
Moreover, Tecnam Aircraft Company has announced that our
well-known GTSIO engine (GTSIO-520-S) as the powerplant
option for the P2012 short takeoff and landing aircraft, and
also chose this engine for the P2012 Traveller and Sentinel SMP
aircraft. Additionally, Diamond Aircraft Company delivered the
DA50 RG aircraft equipped with our CD-300 engine for the first
time in the North American market in 2023.

In 2023, the time between replacement for our CD-170 and
CD-300 increased from 1,200 hours to 1,800 hours and
2,000 hours respectively, which brought significant advantage
to customers. At the same time, more and more innovative
designs have been added to our Jet-A engine series, which
achieved 10 million flight hours.

Due to improved efficiency, our genuine PRIME and TITAN
engines, as well as our PRIME PMA series of parts as options
for other engine application, provide customers with excellent
performance at very competitive prices. These advantages
reinforce our commitment to delivering cutting-edge
technology that exceeds customers’ expectations.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FEBEUREREANRE D

We invest in research and development not only to enhance
our customers’ flying experience and satisfaction but also to
promote the use of sustainable aviation fuel. Our team has
been enthusiastically participated in relevant research to realize
our commitment to sustainable aviation fuels. We are working
with industry partners to accelerate testing of sustainable
aviation fuels in line with global sustainability goals. In 2023,
we completed testing of hydrotreated vegetable oil as a
sustainable fuel option for CD-100 series engines. The Group
will continue to work hard to promote the development of
the aviation industry in a more environmentally friendly and
sustainable direction.

Implementation of New ERP system

After nearly two years of effort, we are pleased to announce
the successful implementation of our new Enterprise Resource
Planning (“ERP"”) system. This significant milestone marks
our transition from the outdated Macola system to the well-
known Oracle NetSuite system. As we continue our pursuit
of operational excellence and efficiency, the new ERP system
integrates various processes, streamlines departmental
workflows, and enhances overall efficiency, automation, and
scalability. Our technology infrastructure is now well-equipped
to accommodate the growing demands of our business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Goodwill

The Group's goodwill acquired through business combination
in prior years has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
in USA ("USA CGU") and a cash-generating unit in Germany
("Germany CGU"). As at 31 December 2023, the entire
amount of the goodwill related to the Germany CGU was
HK$13,841,000 (2022: HK$13,439,000). The impairment
assessment of Germany CGU was performed with the support
of Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
impairment loss is recognised.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets mainly consist of development programs

in progress, trademarks, product technology, licence and
completed programs, and customer relationships. As at 31
December 2023, the Group’s other intangible assets were

HK$1,340,863,000 (2022: HK$1,387,327,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, impairment loss of
HK$101,142,000 was recognised for development programs in
progress. No impairment loss is recognised on other intangible
assets during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Investment in an associate

During the year, the Group recorded a share of loss of an
associate of HK$4,112,000 (2022: HK$8,390,000).

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses consist of salaries and wages, product
liability expenses, engineering expenses, legal and professional
expenses and other general expenses. During the year, the
Group recorded administrative expenses of HK$311,185,000

(2022: HK$293,665,000).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FREREUREEBA®RIT

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had current
assets of HK$1,741,669,000 (2022: HK$1,509,210,000),
including cash and bank balances and bank deposits with
original maturity over three months in an aggregate of
HK$875,280,000 (2022: HK$824,752,000). The Group's current
liabilities as at 31 December 2023 were HK$506,859,000
(2022: HK$422,783,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total equity amounted
to HK$2,995,461,000 (2022: HK$2,818,891,000), comprising
issued capital of HK$930,337,000 (2022: HK$930,337,000)
and reserves of HK$2,065,124,000 (2022: HK$1,888,554,000).
The Group’s interest-bearing debts included lease liabilities
of HK$289,348,000 (2022: HK$294,099,000).
gearing ratio, calculated on the basis of the interest-bearing
debts as a percentage of total equity plus the interest-bearing
debts, was 8.8% (2022: 9.4%).

The Group's

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there are no assets pledged
to secure the Group's bank facilities.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

As most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the operating units, the Group’s exposure to

foreign currency risk is minimal.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no material acquisitions or disposals during the
current year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023,
significant contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

the Group did not have any

ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE

Environmental protection and the effective use of natural
resources have gradually become an important concept in
modern economic growth. The Group has been keeping track
of the major trends in environmental protection around the
world and has been making an effort to integrate the concept
of environmental protection in its operations. Based on new
technology and management approach, the Group strictly
controls its environmental impact and resource usage such
that cleaner production featuring lower pollution and lower
emissions thus sustainable development can be achieved.

The Group strictly complies with all applicable laws and
regulations released by the relevant authorities which are
material to us. Throughout the year 2023, there was no non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.
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FREREUREEE T ®RAIA

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, there were 567 (2022: 534)
employees in the Group. The employees’ wages and salaries
amounted to HK$241,520,000 (2022: HK$216,715,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group recognises
the importance of good relationship with employees. The
Directors believe that the working environment and benefits
offered to employees have contributed to building good staff
relations and retention. The Group's remuneration policies are
formulated based on the performance of individual employees
and market conditions and are reviewed regularly. The Group
also provides other staff benefits including medical and life
insurance, and grants performance related bonuses to eligible
staff based on their performance and contributions to the
Group.

OUTLOOK

In 2023, global GDP experienced robust growth, however as
we head into 2024, economic forecasts remain uncertain. The
primary projection for mid-2024 is a modest contraction in
real GDP. Specifically, we anticipate a decline of approximately
0.5% between the first and third quarters of 2024. If this
projection materializes, it would be the smallest contraction in
real GDP among the 12 post-World War Il economic recessions.

Our commitment to operational excellence, World Class
Manufacturing ("WCM"), will be fully implemented in
all factories by 2024. We have embarked on a journey to
implement WCM practices globally and will achieve the highest
standards of efficiency, quality and innovation through 10
technical pillars and 10 managerial foundations.

As we reflect on our achievements in 2023, we are pleased to
announce our business growth plans in 2024.
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Product/Service Expansion: We will focus on expanding
our global service network to meet the changing needs
and preferences of our customers. By introducing
innovative solutions and enhancing existing products, we
aim to capture new market segments and drive revenue
growth.

Market Penetration: We will intensify our presence in
existing markets, explore emerging regional markets,
and establish connections with new OEMs. Through
strategic partnerships and optimal customer experience
initiatives, we will further strengthen our market position
and increase market share.

Customer Retention and Training: We continually listen
to our customers’ feedback, understand their needs,
establish strong partnerships, and support their growth
objectives. We meet their needs by delivering an
exceptional experience, personalized support, and on-
site and face-to-face training that shares our expertise.

Operational Efficiency and Cost Optimization:
Simplifying operations and optimizing internal processes
are integral to our growth. We will leverage innovative
technology, data analytics and best practices to enhance
efficiency, reduce costs and provide the most valuable
and highest quality products to customers in 78
countries.

Employee Development and Engagement: Our most
valuable asset is our team of professionals. We are
committed to fostering a T.E.A.M. culture of continuous
development, empowerment and collaboration. By
continually investing in team growth and creating a
positive work environment, we will unlock the full
potential of our teams and drive collective success.

1.
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In 2023, our performance was exceptionally strong, allowing
us to look forward optimistically to the prospects of 2024.
Over the past year, we achieved numerous significant
accomplishments and milestones, which serve as the
foundation for continued success in the coming year.

In 2024, we plan to strategically expand our market share,
target untapped opportunities, further integrate cutting-edge
technologies to enhance our operations, and provide innovative
solutions. More importantly, we need to continually invest
in employee development, fostering a skilled and proactive
workforce, focusing on financial sustainability and R&D to
support the Group's long-term growth. With the support of the
global WCM, we look forward to a more successful 2024.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow Directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board of
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

Huang Yongfeng
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Yongfeng, aged 49, has been an executive Director
and a member of nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) since January 2021 and the
chairman of the Company from 1 April 2022. He obtained
a Master degree in management engineering from Beihang
University and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Huang is currently the deputy general manager of AVIC
International Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”)
K) Group Limited
He previously served as

and the director of AVIC International (H
("AVIC International (HK) Group”).
the chairman and general manager of AVIC International
Holding (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.,
AVIC International, the deputy general manager, the general

the general manager assistant of

manager assistant and the manager of corporate strategy
and management department of AVIC Shenzhen Company
Limited, the chairman of Castic-SMP Machinery Corp Ltd and
the board secretary of AVIC International Holdings Limited.
Further, he was also previously a chairman of FIYTA Precision
Technology Company Limited (“FIYTA Precision Technology”)
and a director of each of China Merchants Property Operation
& Service Company Limited (formerly known as AVIC Sunda
Holding Company Limited) (“China Merchants POS"),
Rainbow Department Store Company Limited and Tianma
Microelectronics Company Limited (“Tianma”), the shares of
which are listed and traded on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
Mr. Huang has extensive experience in financial management,
investment and financing management, mergers, and
acquisitions, as well as aviation manufacturing and aviation
operation areas. He is also a chairman of three subsidiaries of
the Group.
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EREREESEZRE

Ms. Jiao Yan, aged 57, has been an executive Director since
August 2021. She obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Law from
Peking University. She is currently the board secretary and
the general counsel of AVIC International. Ms. Jiao previously
served as a director of regulations, the deputy general counsel
and the minister of audit and legal department of AVIC
International. She is also a director of a subsidiary of the
Group.

Mr. Yu Xiaodong, aged 51, has been an executive Director
since August 2018 and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Chief Executive Officer from 1 April 2022.
He obtained a Master's Degree in International Trade from
University of International Business and Economics in 1997. He
previously served as the project manager of AVIC International,
the assistant general manager of AVIC International
(FHERBTEELRD),
management vice director of the international cooperation

Harbin Company* the operations
department of AVIC International, the organisational
performance director of the human resources department of
AVIC International, the vice general manager of the human
resources department of AVIC International and the general
manager of the auditing department of AVIC International. He
is also the director of six subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Zhang Zhibiao, aged 50, has been appointed as an
executive Director on 3 April 2023. He obtained a master's
degree in business administration from Nankai University, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and a bachelor degree
from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics, the PRC. Mr.
Zhang is currently a director and chief executive officer of AVIC
International (HK) Group and a director of Tacko International
Limited. Mr. Zhang served as an executive Director from August
2018 to August 2021.
FIYTA Precision Technology from February 2021 to September
2021
2022, a director of Tianma from February 2021 to November
2021, a director and general manager of Rainbow Digital
from November 2021 to April 2022 and a director of China
Merchants POS from September 2017 to December 2019, the
shares of which are all listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang was previously a director of

, a director of Shennan Circuit from April 2021 to April

Mr. Zhang was also previously an executive director of AVIC
Joy Holdings (HK) Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 260) from
July 2017 to September 2020. Mr. Zhang also served as the
head of the operations management department, the head of
the planning and development department, the head of the
comprehensive management department, the deputy head of
the strategic development department, the office manager of
international aviation business office and the deputy office
manager of the capital operations office of AVIC International.
Prior to joining AVIC International, Mr. Zhang served as
the president assistant of AVIC Securities Company Limited
(formerly known as JIEM#ESFBEREELE (SouthChina
Securities Company Limited)) and the head of LRI ZE
FT (SouthChina Financial Research Institute). Mr. Zhang has
over 25 years of experience in areas of management, aviation
business, strategic development, industry research, securities,
investment and initial public offerings.
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EREREESEZRE

Mr. Li Peiyin, aged 37, has been appointed as an executive
Director on 1 April 2022. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree
in Accounting from Yantai University, China, in July 2007, a
Master’s Degree in Accounting from Xiamen University, China,
in June 2010 and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Missouri State University, the United States of America, in
July 2015. He has been a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since April 2014. Mr. Li has more
than 11 years of experience in corporate financial management.
Mr. Li has been working at the finance department of AVIC
International since August 2010 and he is currently the head
of the finance department there. Moreover, Mr. Li has been
acting as the director of Rainbow Digital Commercial Company
Limited (“Rainbow Digital”), the shares of which are listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002419.S2),
since February 2021, FIYTA Precision Technology, the shares of
which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000026.5Z), since February 2021, Shennan Circuit Company
Limited (“Shennan Circuit”), the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002916.5Z), since
April 2021 and Tianma, the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000050.S7), since July
2022. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Wai Kam, ,,, aged 76, has been a non-executive
Director since June 2015. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Architectural Studies and a Bachelor of Architecture
degree from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970
and November 1972, respectively. He has been an Authorised
Person (List of Architects) and a Registered Architect since July
1976 and January 1991, respectively. He was also admitted as
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects since August
2001. He is currently an executive director of CK Asset Holdings
Limited ("CKAH"), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow joined the Hutchison Group in July
1995 and was the group managing director of the property
and hotels divisions of the Hutchison Group since 2000. He is
now the group managing director of Hutchison Property Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKAH. He has over 40
years of experience in project management and architectural
design for various developments, including hotel, residential,
commercial, industrial and school projects in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and overseas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, /2 s8s, aged 80, has been an
independent non-executive Director since May 1999. He is also
a member of the Nomination Committee and the chairman
of each of the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit
Committee”) and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chu
received his Master of Business Administration degree from
Harvard University after degrees in Electrical Engineering and
Management at Northeastern University and was awarded an
honorary Doctor of Public Service degree from Northeastern
University. He worked for a number of sizeable international
corporations such as Bank of America, General Electric Co.
and Jardine Matheson & Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an
independent non-executive director of Chuang’s Consortium
International Limited, and was an independent non-executive
director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment Group Limited until
June 2021, all being listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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EREREESEZRE

Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 69, has been an independent non-
executive Director since December 2007. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science honours degree in Chemistry
and Administration. Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK. He is an independent
non-executive director of China Merchants Port Holdings
Company Limited, China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings
Limited, Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, Goldlion
Holdings Limited, Shanghai Industrial Urban Development
Group Limited, and Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings
Limited, and was an independent non-executive director of CR
Construction Group Holdings Limited until June 2021, all being
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 59, has been an independent non-
executive Director since May 2017. He is also a chairman and
member of the Nomination Committee and the member of
Audit Committee. He received a doctoral degree in Economics
from Chinese Academy of Social Science Graduate School
(hETERBERAZESER) . Mr. Zhang started working at
the Institute of Economics under Chinese Academy of Social
Science (PR &R EZIREEN IR since July 1988. He
once led and organized key national research project on
economics. He published several essays based on theory
research and surveys. His major research fields are the growth
of China economy and macroeconomic policies.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lin Jining, aged 53, joined the Group in June 2018 as
deputy chief financial officer and is responsible for the Group's
corporate finance, accounting and treasury functions. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting and economic from
University of Xiamen. Mr. Lin held senior management positions
in different companies. He has over 25 years of experience in
accounting and finance and international aviation business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
“Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code"”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as the Company's
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
A reminder is served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black out period that Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.

The Directors are required to notify the chief executive
officer (who is also a Director) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the chief
executive officer himself, he must notify the chairman and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before any dealing.
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Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company's
affairs.

Currently, the Board comprises five executive Directors, and
one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors. An independent non-executive Director has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as prescribed by the Listing
Rules. 8 out of 9 Directors served the full year for the year
ended 31 December 2023. The composition of the Board and
the biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
13 to 18 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in this annual
report, there is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) between Board
members.
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Notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which
any Director may be appointed or engaged at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. The Directors to
retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election but as between persons who
became Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by
lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. A new
Director appointed by the Board after the preceding annual
general meeting shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the existing Board)
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Nomination Committee will carefully consider the
qualifications and experience of each candidate, before making
evaluation and submitting its recommendations to the Board
on the candidates for the appointment of new Directors, re-
election of Directors and filling any vacancy in the Board. After
the Board approves the proposal in relation to the nomination
of candidates for Directors, the proposal will be submitted
to the shareholders’ general meeting for consideration and
approval.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to maintaining a competitive
advantage of the Board. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives
to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives. The Board will
review the Policy, from time to time, to ensure its continued
effectiveness. As at the date of this report, the Board consists
of one female and eight male Directors. Taking into account
the business model and specific needs of the Company, the
Board considers that the gender diversity in respect of the
Board is satisfactory. The Board will endeavour to invite more
female members over time to join the Board when selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates for Board
appointments. The Board would ensure that appropriate
balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference
to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices with the ultimate goal of bringing
the Board to gender diversity.

The Group has also taken, and continues to take, steps to
promote diversity at all levels of its workforce. Opportunities
for employment, training and career development are equally
opened to all eligible employees without discrimination.
Currently, the male to female ratio in the workforce of the
Group is approximately 3:1. Due to the nature of industry in
which the Group operates, the industry has been in short of
female talents traditionally, therefore the Board considers that
the gender diversity in workforce is currently achieved and
the Board will continue to take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female workforce over time as and when suitable
female candidates are identified.
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The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight
over the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions under the requirements of the CG
Code. The major role and functions of the Board regarding its
corporate governance include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and Directors; and

5. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect
of corporate governance matters during the year ended 31
December 2023:

1. performed corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;
2. reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies

and practices;
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3 reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the
Group;

4. reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and

5. reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company is delegated
with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and
administration of the Company and makes operational and
business decisions within the control and delegation framework
of the Company.

The Company has issued formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of insurance cover each year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances through the chairman at the expense
of the Company. The availability of professional advice extends
to the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings were taken by the company
secretary and, together with any supporting Board papers,
are available to all Board members. During the year ended
31 December 2023, eight Board meetings were held by the
Company.
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The attendance record of Directors at Board meetings and other
Committee meetings as well as general meetings during the

EEERRS

EENBE_ZE_=ZF+B=+—HLHF
ERLRFEZTERZNEAMEZE TR UK

year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the table below: REAGHEESHREN TR
Number of general
Number of meetings or meetings attended/held meetings attended/held
HE/BTEENEERY HE/ BTRRAERY
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board Committee = Committee = Committee Annual Special
Director 55 - FMEEE RAZEE BENRZEY BE ¥
Executive Directors HiTEE
Huang Yongfeng BRE (ZE)
(Chairman) 8/8 - 212 - 11 0/1
Jiao Yan - $:3 8/8 - = = 0/1 01
Yu Xiaodong TER 8/8 212 - - 7 17
Zhao Yang* HiE 3/3 - - - 0/0 0/0
Li Peiyin FREE 8/8 - - - 0/1 0/1
Zhang Zhibiao* KRG 5/5 - - - 171 171
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Chow Wai Kam BEE 8/8 - - - 7 11
Independent BUFHITEE
Non-executive Directors
Chu Yu Lin, David RPB 8/8 212 212 5/5 11 11
Li Ka Fai, David FRE 8/8 212 - 5/5 11 11
Zhang Ping RE 8/8 - 212 5/5 0/1 0/1
g Mr. Zhao Yang resigned on 3 April 2023. e BEEEN _E_=FNA=H&T-
& Mr. Zhang Zhibiao has been appointed as executive Director on 3 # REBAENR_SE_=ZFNE=HEZTA
April 2023. HiTES-

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a meeting was held
by the Chairman with the Non-executive Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) without presence of the
executive Directors. Save for the annual general meeting, one
special general meeting was held during the year 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed director was given a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction training to ensure that he/she
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements.

Mr. Zhang Zhibiao was appointed as an executive Director on
3 April 2023 and he had obtained legal advice referred to in
rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 19 April 2023, and he had
confirmed that he understood his obligation as a Director.

All directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
pursuant to CG Code C.1.4. According to the records provided
by the Directors, the Directors received the following training
during the year 2023:

Reading materials

ERRIIREEEE
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Type of continuous professional
development programmes
FEEEER2ER
Attending briefing

and updates sessions/seminars

Director 55 BREMERENREN HES Y Wag
Executive Directors HITER
Huang Yongfeng BEE v 4
Jiao Yan == v v
Yu Xiaodong FiEE v/ v
Zhao Yang* ik v/ v/
Li Peiyin TEE v 4
Zhang Zhibiao* SRS AR v 4
Non-executive Director FEHITEE
Chow Wai Kam BE% v v
Independent BIIHHITEE
Non-executive Directors
Chu Yu Lin, David oK 4 v v
Li Ka Fai, David TRE v v
Zhang Ping IR v v
g Mr. Zhao Yang resigned on 3 April 2023. J BHEEEN _E_=FNA=H&E-
# Mr. Zhang Zhibiao has been appointed as executive Director on 3 # REREENRZEZ=FMNMA=BEZEA
April 2023. HITES
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
chairman is separated from that of the chief executive officer.
Currently, the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are Mr. Huang Yongfeng and Mr. Yu Xiaodong
respectively.

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
chief executive officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the chairman and the
chief executive officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function of
providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding the
interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole. The
Company had received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considered
that the independent non-executive Directors are independent
in character and judgment and fulfill the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has entered into service agreements with Mr.
Chow Wai Kam and Mr. Zhang Ping for a term of three years.
The Company has entered into service agreements with Mr.
Chu Yu Lin, David and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David with no specified
length of service.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
executive Director, Mr. Yu Xiaodong, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David
(as chairman) and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company's policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The role, authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly set out
in its terms of reference.

Two meetings were held during the year 2023 to review and
recommend the remuneration package of all Directors to Board.
The attendance of each member is set out in the table above
under section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associates is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2023,
the Remuneration Committee has adopted the model “to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management”.
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Details of remuneration of members of senior management of HE_Z_=ZF£+_A=+—HIEEE &
the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2023 ABEESEZMESEHHLIINOT
are set out below:
Number of
individuals
Remuneration B & A
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,00078 75 % 2,000,0007%8 75 1

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix D2
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal audit function. It currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin,
David (as chairman), Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Zhang Ping.
The Audit Committee met five times during the year 2023 to
assess the ability of external auditor and review the interim
and final results, the interim and annual reports, the external
auditor’'s engagement letter and fee, the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, the effectiveness
of the Group's internal audit function and the continuing
connected transactions. The attendance of each member is set
out in the table above under the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS”. The duties of the Audit Committee are clearly set
out in its terms of reference.

Full minutes of meetings are kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has a Nomination Committee which was
established in compliance with rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules
and code provisions B.3.1 to B.3.4 of the CG Code for the
purposes of reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying candidates with suitable qualifications
as directors, selecting and making recommendations to the
Board, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, and making recommendations to the Board
on matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors. It currently
comprises one executive Director, Mr. Huang Yongfeng, and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang
Ping (as chairman) and Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David. The duties of
the Nomination Committee are clearly set out in its terms of
reference.

Two meetings were held during the year 2023 to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and
making recommendations to the Board regarding appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The attendance of each member is set out
in the table above under the section headed “BOARD OF
DIRECTORS”.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals
of high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in
their chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities
and skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group
and its shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability
to exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights
and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in
the context of the then-current composition of the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as
it deems appropriate given the then current and anticipated
future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain
a balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on
the Board.

The Nomination Committee considered the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new board
members, or the continued service of existing members:

o the highest professional and personal ethics;
o broad experience in business;
o ability to provide insights and practical wisdom based on

their experience and expertise;

o commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

o sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

o compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
o ability to develop a good working relationship with other

Board members and contribute to the Board's working
relationship with senior management of the Group.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young are the auditors of the Group. The services
provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for
auditing and non-auditing (including interim review and other
professional services) services for the year ended 31 December
2023 amount to HK$3,500,000 and HK$1,651,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the shareholders of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and
for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report of
this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. These
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, losses or fraud. Procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records; and for
the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication. Procedures have also been designed for
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, were conducted by the internal audit section of the
Group from time to time. The results and recommendations
were reported to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the
Board. The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
had also been reviewed by the Board and Audit Committee.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, internal audit
section of the Group evaluated the effectiveness and adequacy
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
by adopting an integrated risk assessment approach, and the
review report was presented to the Audit Committee and
the Board for review in March 2024. No material deficiency
was identified. Improvements in internal control and risk
management measures to enhance the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and to mitigate risks of
the Group will be adopted by The Board. The Board considered
that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
were adequate and effective and the Company had complied
with the provisions on risk management and internal control of
the CG Code. The Board confirms that systems and procedures
are in place to identify, control and report on significant risks
involved in achieving the Company's strategic objectives.
Exposures to these risks are monitored by the Board with the
support of Audit Committee, internal audit section and senior
management.
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The Company has implemented Corporate Disclosure Policy,
which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Chi Ho, the company secretary of the Company, is
an employee of the Company and responsible directly to the
Board. He has complied with all the qualification, experience
and training requirement under the Listing Rules.

The company secretary reports to the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated memorandum of association and bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company's website at
www.cath.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated
website at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2023, there
was no change in the amended and restated memorandum of
association and bye-laws of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company and the Companies
Act, the Board shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the "Registered Office”),
which is presently situated at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda, and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.
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If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available under
section Corporate Governance of the Company’s website at
www.cath.com.hk.

Procedures for directing shareholder’s enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company's priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.
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General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before an annual general
meeting and at least ten clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before a meeting called for
passing of a special resolution, and, at least ten clear business
days or fourteen clear days, whichever is the longer, before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting or a meeting for
the passing of a special resolution.

Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll may also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2023 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 29 May 2023. At the meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors, and
voted by way of poll. The Company announced the results
of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.
All Directors except for two executive Directors and an
independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee, a member of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member
of Nomination Committee, attended the 2023 annual general
meeting and had effective communications with shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social
and governance (“ESG") report, which describes our EGS
development and performance in 2023, to respond to
stakeholders’ expectations and concerns about the Group’s
sustainable development.

The Board of Directors assumes the responsibility for the
sustainable development of the Group, and leads the Group to
undertake social responsibility. The Board consists of both male
and female directors to represent diversity. The board diversity
policy of the Group includes age and gender as key diversity
considerations in the appointment of directors. The Board firmly
believes that measures such as reducing emissions, making
good use of resources, addressing climate change, improving
occupational safety and health, strengthening development
and training, and advocating operations with integrity will help
the Group achieve its established mission and objectives. The
Board is of the view that taking ESG management seriously
could help build a green corporate image, promote sustainable
business development, increase company revenue, facilitate
community development, and give back to society. The Board
considers that strengthened staff training, improved equipment
and facilities as well as enhanced environmental support at the
operating site will contribute to continuous progress.

The Chairman exercises leadership and supervisory
responsibilities, and a dedicated ESG working group composed
of senior officers organises various departments to implement
ESG strategies and reviews the Group's sustainability goals
and strategies, regulatory performance, ESG reports, etc. The
Board will actively participate in relevant training to understand
the latest developments in ESG issues, and consider inviting
relevant experts to participate in board meetings, if applicable,
to help the Board gain relevant experience. The Board has
adopted a number of approaches to reinforce the ESG
governance structure, including having the Audit Committee
take on additional responsibilities. We have established
working groups within our primary operating units to set ESG
goals and regularly review the effectiveness of the plans. The
working groups report to the Board biannually or annually.
By formulating strategies, the Board gives clear guidance to
the operating units on plans and goals, and regularly reviews
the effectiveness of the plans. The Board regularly examines
strategies and plans, and reviews the ESG report to ensure that
the Group’s development and disclosure standards meet the
expectations of stakeholders.
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ESG-related risk management is critical to the Board. Through
communication with different stakeholders and comprehensive
understanding of our business, the Board has made a basic
assessment of all relevant risks and considered incorporating
relevant risks into its risk management and internal control
systems to promote comprehensive risk management within
the Group. In particular, the Group pays great attention to risks
related to occupational safety and health, employment equality
and diversity, employment system and employee training,
health and safety protection of products for customers, quality
control of production materials, operations with integrity, and
climate change adaptability. In terms of addressing climate
change, the Group believes that climate change may lead to
infrastructure damage caused by extreme weather events such
as super typhoons. At the policy and legal level, the Group
may need to allocate time and resources to deal with revised
laws and regulations on climate change. At the scientific
and technological level, the Group may face the challenge of
accelerating technological upgrading to cope with the trend of
climate change.

The Board believes that our focus on product quality, proper
management of relevant supply chain risks and assurance of
occupational health and safety are particularly beneficial for the
Group to achieve its goal of establishing an excellent corporate
image. Therefore, the Group regularly assesses our product
quality and occupational safety statistics against predetermined
goals, as these goals and assessments are effective indicators of
production capacity and operational control.
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As the society is building a consensus on sustainable
development, the Group will respond more quickly to address
market changes and demands. Looking back at the past year,
the Group’'s environmental performance was well recognised
by the market, bringing opportunities to increase market
share. Looking ahead, high energy prices, carbon taxes, the
development of green technology, and the acceleration of
digital operations and customer interaction will all affect the
Group's ESG strategy and goals for the coming year. However,
the Group holds a firm belief that practicing ESG management
will help us achieve net-zero transition in business operations
and steadily move toward an environment-friendly economy.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social
and governance report (the "ESG Report”), which details the
Group'’s policies, measures, and performance on environmental,
social and governance issues. By reporting to stakeholders,
the Group has disclosed its measures and performance on
sustainable development issues in a transparent manner
and increased public confidence, helping stakeholders
better understand the Group’s sustainability progress and

development direction at the same time.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

This ESG report specifies the Group's environmental, social and
governance performance for the fiscal year 2023 (1 January
to 31 December 2023), which is consistent with that of the
annual report of the Group. The Group planned and prepared
this report based on the materiality principle. Unless otherwise
stated, this report covers the general aviation aircraft piston
engine business in the United States which represents the
majority of the Group’s environmental and social impact.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES AND REPORTING

The Group's environmental, social and governance guidelines
are designed to continually improve the transparency and
responsibility of information disclosure. Therefore, the ESG
Report is released annually by the Group for public review. In
addition, the Group is committed to creating long-term value
for stakeholders in line with the interest of the environment
in which it operates, while driving the business growth and
sustainable development of the Group. As such, the Group
has formulated its sustainable development policies which
cover the Group’s activities in the environmental, employment,
business integrity, and social aspects. The Group will strive to
incorporate such principles into its practice and governance,
and is committed to contributing to the sustainable
development of society and the environment.

The Board is responsible for reviewing and assessing the
Group's environmental, social and governance risks. The Board
strives to contribute to sustainability. By formulating well-
defined environmental, social and governance policies, the
Board can identify and mitigate relevant risks, and ensure the
solid implementation of relevant policies and guidelines.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

This report is prepared and presented with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules:

1. Materiality: the threshold at which ESG issues become
sufficiently important to investors and other stakeholders
that they should be reported. Accordingly, this report
covers the principal business of the Group.

2. Quantitative: KPIs need to be measurable and
meaningful comparisons shall be made where
appropriate. The purpose and impact of such indicators
shall be explained. Accordingly, KPIs are presented in this
report pursuant to the reporting guide.

3. Balance: this report should provide an unbiased picture
of the Group's ESG performance. The report should
avoid selection, omission, or presentation format that
may inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by
the report reader.

4. Consistency: this report uses consistent methodologies
to allow for meaningful comparisons of ESG data over
time. Any changes to the statistical methods used should
also be stated in the report.
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STAKEHOLDERS PARTICIPATION AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Feedback from stakeholders not only helps the Group
comprehensively and impartially evaluate its ESG performance,
but also enables the Group to continuously improve its
performance based on the feedback. As such, the Group
regularly communicates with stakeholders in an open, honest
and proactive manner through a variety of channels, including
interim reports, annual reports, announcements and circulars.
During the reporting period, the Group continued to maintain
an open dialogue with stakeholders to review and update
the areas identified as important to the Group’s business
operations. This can help the Group develop sustainability plans
in line with its business strategy.

Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment are
among the key reporting principles for preparing a quality ESG
report. Therefore, the Group determines the topics of business
importance through stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment, and accordingly gives them priority in the relevant
section of the report.

The Group conducted an online stakeholder survey from
November to December 2023 and invited external stakeholders
such as customers, regulators, distributors and suppliers as
well as internal stakeholders including the Group's directors
and employees spanning from senior management, middle
management and general employees to participate in the
survey to rate the reporting issues set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide according to their
perceived materiality to the Group or the stakeholder groups
they represent.

The materiality of each reporting issue was then determined by
consolidating the materiality levels rated by all the participants.
The materiality rating for each stakeholder category is the
average of all respondents within that stakeholder category.
The overall materiality rating across multiple stakeholder
categories is the average of the materiality ratings for each
category. As there are no updated responses from customers
and suppliers in this year's survey, the valid responses from the
previous survey are retained.

RIF-HERELGERS
a2 RREEEFE

ROENRBENEEHAERZ2ENF S
L B S RESGRIR  FRF R4 E E DA
ki FENERR AEEARILEBFTRR
BUUARA BEREHBNEEATHEE
THERAREHNER ETEETHRSER
FHR-AEURBRE - BREHMN > A& M
BEFHERFTRABOEE > URRRERM
BHABHAEEXT M BEENHE
ERBIEEEFRBENARFEERET
fEeo

BNESHEKREEZUEFERERSHEESG
BEMNTIERSRIZ— At EEEBEF
MESENEBZUNEEENEZENHE
HEBEERE  WHBMEREFHAER
NBETEREE-

EER-ZE=F+—ZEZ2+"FHEBTHEF®
E2HEERE BBETERL EEBU-D
HE HEBENESFHE UERERES
BETEESREEAE - HPREEABNE
BEISERNBIFMHELHBET  REMPI
AELZEHERNMMMARNIFTHEE
BRNEZE% HIRE -8 KRERIESIFRE
RS EEIT AR o

REEBERBMESHELENEEURE
REEBEREZENEZE - BEFKMHE
BHNEBESREXFNERIANMAR
FENTHE REZERFNERNERE
EEUSRAEESEBNEEESHRNTE
B-HRSFENRFAEERMEREEFERE EM
BEE AEFRET E—XAENAREE-

43



44

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
ABEMZERIRIER AR AR
Annual Report 2023 — & — = FF%R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE-HERERERS

To clearly illustrate the results, a materiality matrix containing
the materiality ratings on each issue as rated by the Group's
directors and other stakeholders, including employees and
external stakeholders, is shown below. The materiality matrix
clearly illustrates the results by classifying the materiality
ratings (from 1 to 5) of the Group’'s directors and other
stakeholders on each issue. The issues at the top right of the
materiality matrix are considered as important by the Group’s
directors and other stakeholders.
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Note: Since all survey results for materiality are above 3.0, in order to
present the relative distribution of issues more clearly, the blank part
below 3.0 is not shown in the above figure.
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We received feedback from all stakeholder categories FMFIEREBFZDHIFAEF(HELER AU E

participating in our survey. B3 development and training was T EB B3R EBAFIIEFTNELLNEE
determined as the most important issue in both stakeholder M fHHHWHEEASEEMNHEE  FTAESG

engagement and materiality assessment. All ESG issues were EEEWIEAEE:
rated as important, while A4 climate change was rated as FFfEAEMERE-

slightly important.

The table below outlines the most important ESG issues FRBETARBFTNEFRRENEEENER

identified by different stakeholders.

Stakeholder group
Fin&EERN

Senior management
BHREEBAE

Middle management

HIREEAS

General employees
—RET

Regulators

EEB

Customers
L=

Bt EhELHES

Most important issues

REEZE

B1 Employment
B1 E 1%

B6 Product responsibility
B6 EmE1E

B7 Anti-corruption

B7 R&ES

B2 Health and safety

B2 BEMZ 2

B6 Product responsibility
B6 EmEE

Most issues are of similar importance
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B3 Development and training
B3 % /= B3l
B5 Supply chain management
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Most important issues

REESS

A4 Climate change
A4 RIREAE

B1 Employment

B1 EfE

B2 Health and safety
B2 BEEMZ 2

B3 Development and training
B3 3% & B3l

B4 Labour standards
B4 25 T %8|

B7 Anti-corruption
B7 R&5

B2 Health and safety

B2 BEMZE

B4 Labour standards

B4 &5 T2

B6 Product responsibility
B6 EmEE

To address the concerns of relevant stakeholders, the Group has &I EMRBEF M ENHFR > REMWBESEH
disclosed the policies and measures implemented for relevant BiKXBEER ABRTHND EFRIEITHNBER K E
stakeholders in the corresponding sections of the report. i ©
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to implementing a series
of environmental management methods to control
waste gas and greenhouse gas emissions, discharge
into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste. By implementing targeted
management regulations and reducing the impact of
daily business activities on the environment, the Group
strives to achieve a green production model with low
emissions and low pollution, and aligns its business
model with the development trend of low-carbon
economy, thus paving the way for the Group’s transition
to low-carbon economy in the future.

1. GAS EMISSIONS AND WASTE

(a) GREENHOUSE GAS AND AIR
MANAGEMENT

Based on its established environmental
protection policies, the Group has
formulated internal environmental
guidelines to systematically
integrate emission management into
daily operations. To promote the
implementation of environmental
protection guidelines, the Group
has established the environmental
management committee which comprises
the human resources director, plant facility
manager, environment and occupational
safety and health manager, environmental
engineer and relevant stakeholders, in
order to balance different opinions and
maintain close communication.
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The Group takes active and effective
measures to comply with government
laws and regulations and its business units
have obtained emission permits issued by
the relevant authorities. The Group sets
emission targets for its core production
processes in accordance with the terms of
these emission permits and strives to apply
appropriate reprocessing equipment to
various facilities and machinery. The Group
has installed pollutant control devices in
factory painting rooms, sand spray mills,
sand blasting machines and treatment
tanks to effectively control and reduce
the emission of carbon monoxide, volatile
organic compounds, particulate matters
and other harmful air pollutants, and
regularly monitors air quality.

The Group’'s air emissions mainly come
from its general aviation aircraft piston
engine business, which involves air
pollutants from transportation and testing
of engines. The air emissions include
nitrogen oxides (NOX), sulphur oxides
(SOX) and particulate matters.

A& B AR A A R
B LART & BUR AR BY
R EFEUCERF/ME
HE B HBPERET ] o
1R 15 58 &= HF ET AT B9 1%
Mo REBRSEZOEE
MIERE T ERFKE
B WRARERERE
MEBMTERBEENR
RIERME TR AR
B ~ BD KL PR B %~ PERD 1%
MEEEFHERZRET
EHRMEGERE > ARIE
AR D — S| ACH >~ 1
MERIESY BHUYE
BEERSRYBEM

WEMBEAEREE

AEBENBERFRER
REBRAMERKEERE
LHRET > S RER
MAASZEMREED
ERSHRY HUASR
£% (NOX) ~FRE|EEY)
(SOX) FIFEHIH) o

=%

Emission Unit (kg)
HEnsn HERE(FR)
2023 2022
T = =S
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) AFEEM(NOX) 2,260.00 1,938.76
Sulphur oxides (SOx) EEH(SOx) 60.00 48.25
Particulate matters R 2,620.00 1,830.56

Table 1 — Total Emissions during the Reporting
Period

®1 - BREMARANGERYRE
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The Group also seeks to reduce
greenhouse gas and exhaust emissions
by incorporating greenhouse gas and
exhaust management as part of its
operational decision-making by setting
carbon emission targets for its core
production processes in accordance with
the terms of emission permits issued
by the relevant authorities. The Group's
environmental management system
guides the review of any new equipment
or equipment changes that may be a
source of carbon emissions to ensure
that potential carbon emissions do not
exceed the stated target. The Group's
greenhouse gas emissions mainly come
from aircraft plant operations, including
fuel consumption in the testing of aircraft
engines. The business units have taken
multiple measures to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions and air pollutants, one of
which is to cut greenhouse gas emissions
by reducing electricity consumption. To
conserve electricity in the office, the Group
prioritises using low-power electrical
appliances or products, and avoids using
unnecessary high-power equipment. For
example, the Group preferably chooses
LED or low-wattage, high-luminance
lighting systems. The Group also reviews
its internal policies and practices regularly,
updates them appropriately to keep
pace with international environmental
protection trends, and implements
environmental protection initiatives in a
timely manner,
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Scope of Emissions
greenhouse (Tonnes of carbon Intensity
gas emission dioxide equivalent)  (Emissions per employee)
HmE BE
mERBHHRER MEZREREEE) (HERE/8 T)
2023 2022 2023 2022
—8-=§ “T__F Z8=HF T__F
Scope 1 #EN
Direct emissions =370 2,272.97  2,730.92 6.01 7.00
Scope 2 giE2
Energy indirect emissions AER B HER 5.94 5.77 0.02 0.01
Scope 3 #E3
Other indirect emissions HEB#EHER 82.98 94.27 0.22 0.24
Total @zt 2,361.89  2,830.96 6.25 7.25
Note: The calculations were based on the sk : SHELERBRZETFT
Reporting Guidance on Environmental EHNIRBERBEN
KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange, 2006 ERREHESZF
IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse TRFIPCCARRBE
Gas Inventories, IPCC Sixth Assessment RAEBEIER N IPCC
Report, and latest grid emission factors. BARARTFERSE R
Scope 1 includes consumption of MEMBEMEA T - &
aviation fuel, unleaded petrol, liquefied B IEM = LRm - &
petroleum gas, kerosene, diesel, natural #;EH S RIEEHR
gas, acetylene, and carbon dioxide SRR SRS KRR
extinguisher, and fugitive emission IR R Z | AL B K
of refrigerants. Scope 2 includes BEHE URE2
electricity power purchased from power B892k sR BERR - EE 2
companies. Scope 3 includes air mileage BEXEHRABE
of employees. B -#HEIBEET
RITE#H-
Table 2 — Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions during ®2- REHANBEERE
the Reporting Period BEAE e
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(b)

Waste Management

The Group conducts a waste assessment
process to assess the discharge status of
newly added machinery or processes by
assessing their exhaust gas, water, solid
waste, special waste, non-hazardous waste
and hazardous waste. The Group adheres
to the 4R waste management principle
and strives to properly treat and dispose
of waste generated from its business
activities through use reduction, waste
reuse, recycling and alternative use. For
example, the Group reuses crates wrapped
around the engine to reduce wood waste
disposal, and uses recyclable folding plastic
crates and foam padding for crankshaft,
camshaft, crankcase and connecting rod
parts to reduce cardboard and wood
waste. The Group aims to reduce waste by
1% on the basis of the waste data of the
past two years and follows up the waste
data quarterly.

The Group classifies hazardous and non-
hazardous waste for disposal in the factory,
and the hazardous waste is handed over
to qualified hazardous waste collectors for
disposal so as to meet the requirements of
local laws and regulations. The hazardous
waste collectors commissioned by the
Group have all obtained hazardous
waste transportation permit from the
U.S. Department of Transportation. The
Group increases its downstream recycling
potential by classifying waste where
feasible and disposes of non-recyclable
waste in accordance with laws and
regulations to reduce the impact on the
environment.

(b)
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Intensity
(Emissions per
employee)
Waste Consumption (Tonnes) BE
BEY HEEE () (Hth& 8T)
2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEZIZHE ZT-F ZEIZE ZTCHE
Total hazardous waste ~ BEEEEYEE 25.88 18.50 0.07 0.05
Total non-hazardous REBEYES
waste 222.52 148.74 0.59 0.38
Table 3 - Waste Generated during the Reporting R3I- REPANFMELEER
Period )
During the reporting period, the Group RIS AEEER
strictly complied with the relevant ETHEBENRFREANN
environmental laws such as Resource BRMWEAMEE XB
Conservation and Recovery Act and there A %8 Kk BIRRERE
was no case of prosecution against the B AR A 2R Y B 22 o
Group for violation of environmental laws.
USE OF RESOURCES 2. BREER

The Group follows the principles of green
production, energy conservation and emission
reduction, and systematically incorporate resource
management into its internal environmental
guidelines in daily operations. In order to
enhance energy efficiency and reduce paper and
water consumption for practicing environmental
philosophy, the Group monitors and manages
the efficiency of resource use by actively
implementing a number of measures to conserve
resources and achieve low carbon production,
emission reduction and energy saving. Details of
energy and water consumption are discussed in
the sections below.

FEEEBERESEEEMDER
RA REREERMME
AHBEERNAIIRFES
ReB/TIRSERN @ A
MAMBKEUBEBRRFRES
FEERBEMSEEK BT
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(a)

Resources

The Group attaches great importance to
energy management and has set the goal
of reducing total electricity consumption
by 1% every year to make effective use of
power resources. To achieve this goal, the
Group integrated old facilities into new
buildings to reduce power consumption.
Meanwhile, the Group prefers using
equipment with higher energy efficiency,
including energy-saving lighting fixtures, in
an effort to reduce energy consumption in
the long run. For the sake of conducting
lean management and waste reduction
management, the Group encourages
employees to redesign products
and materials from various aspects,
effectively reuse them, prolong the life
cycle of resources, and reduce resource
consumption and waste generation, with
a view to achieving the long-term goa
of zero emissions. Meanwhile, the Group
implements the “5S+Safety” Scheme for
workspace management, where the core
model covers five areas (sort, set, shine,
standardise, and sustain) plus safety to
improve operational efficiency.

(@
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Water Consumption

Sustainable and responsible use of
water resources is a major global issue,
and excessive demand and overuse of
water can cause serious regional water
shortage. In view of this, the Group’s
operation units have in place wastewater
treatment equipment. Through wastewater
minimisation plans and neutralisation,
chromate reduction, and alkaline
chlorination of cyanide, the Group ensures
that the emissions meet relevant standards
and that water is reused. It aims to reduce
the amount of treatable wastewater by 1%
per year, and 30% reduction was achieved
during the reporting period. The Group has
no problem in obtaining water sources fit
for use.

(b)
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During the reporting period, the resources
directly consumed by the Group for

R|BEA > ZEBAR
EENERHEFRN

operations are as follows: T
Intensity
(Consumption per
employee)
Consumption ZE
Resources Unit HEE (H#E /8I)
&R Efi 2023 2022 2023 2022
2= B ZEZ= B CHF
Energy
AER
Electricity "000 kWh 15.23 14.41 0.04 0.04
Ly FEFEE
Fuel oil "000 kWh 923.79 2,621.76 2.44 6.72
Jeagi TETRRE
Fuel gas "000 kWh 9,136.59 9,556.24 2417 24.50
e FEFEE
Total energy "000 kWh 10,075.61 12,192.41 26.65 31.26
AE R A5t FEFEE
Other resources
Hitt&iR
Water cubic metre 41,105.22 30,760.00 108.74 78.87
K I FHK
Note: The unit of energy figures is converted Mzt : BEREB2ERMEH
into kWh based on the lower heat value. B HMEATER -
Fuel oil includes aviation fuel, unleaded HEEMZTEmE &
gasoline, kerosene, and diesel. Fuel gas FA0H R R S0 o
includes liquefied petroleum gas and MEBEERLCERR
natural gas. BN
Table 4 — Total Consumption of Resources during x4- BREPRNERERE
the Reporting Period e
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Consumption

Packaging material FHRE
used for finished products Unit 2023 2022
S pm B E Efl —EZ=H T
Packaging material tonne

used for finished products 198.06 178.01

HplmEEME L

Table 5 — Total Consumption of Packaging Material
Used for Finished Products during the
Reporting Period

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group is dedicated to implementing a series
of effective measures to mitigate the impact of
noise, emissions and indoor air pollution on the
environment and surrounding areas. Meanwhile,
the Group has engaged qualified environmental
consultants to review its environmental projects
regularly. For example, the Group ensures that
the factory is in compliance with the Resource
Conservation and Recycling Act (RCRA), the Air
Emissions Permit, and the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
have any major environmental accidents.
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EMEERBE

RIRREAER

FEBSNER—RIBEHH
¥ LURDIRE S BEAE A
ETRSAEHIRFENFEME
WEE AR ZAEEBEERE
BRNIRREREHEETIRR
BB fIMERIRT S EB
BERREHLDWOE (RCRA) ~ 2
RBEIRET AT M B 505 2K HE BT
Hl 74t (NPDES) BISFRIZK o

RESHREAEBRREHERE
RIRIBER -

57



58

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
ABEMZERIRIER AR AR
Annual Report 2023 — & — = FF%R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIR 118 RERHRS

4.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group is principally engaged in the general
aviation aircraft piston engine business, with
its main place of business located in Alabama,
USA. To address the physical risks of climate
change, the Group has identified and assessed
such risks and taken measures to ensure that its
infrastructure can effectively cope with extreme
weather, thus mitigating the impact on business
operations. Meanwhile, the Group strictly abides
by the extreme weather guidelines issued by the
government to ensure the safety of employees.
The Group regularly reviews its climate change
policies to keep up with the times and ensure the
effectiveness of the measures taken.

B. SOCIAL

1.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

The Group deeply believes that employees have
an important impact on the quality of its products
and services. Employees are the driving force for
the sustainable development of a company and
the foundation of a successful enterprise. The
Group strives to maintain a diverse, inclusive, fair,
healthy and safe working environment, actively
builds a harmonious relationship with employees
to gather talents and jointly promote the long-
term sustainable development of the Group's
business.
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Equal Opportunities Policy

The Group is convinced that providing
employees with equal opportunities can
improve their satisfaction, stimulate their
motivation, attract outstanding talents,
and expedite the Group's business
development. To ensure fairness, the
Group formulates relevant recruitment
and promotion procedures to make sure
that no discrimination whatsoever exists in
the hiring and promotion process. Human
resources decisions are made based on the
capabilities, knowledge and experience
related to the open positions of job
applicants and employees irrespective of
factors such as gender, age, race, family
status, religious belief and disability.

Compensation System

The Group has a set of comprehensive
human resources management policies
to serve as the basis of human resources
management. The policies include
compensation and benefits, working hours
and holidays, recruitment and selection,
performance management, promotion,
employment termination, training and
development, and other related areas.
The Group regularly reviews remuneration
packages to ensure it provides a fair
and competitive remuneration package
incorporating basic salary, social security
insurance and other fringe benefits, and
to attract and retain top talent. When
evaluating and setting remuneration
levels, the Group takes into account a
number of factors, including employees’
work ability, the Group’s performance,
and compensation levels in the market.
Furthermore, the Group shares with
employees the value they have created
with due consideration to its performance
growth, with a view to maintaining its
attractiveness in the labour market.
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During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any cases of violation of
relevant employment laws and regulations,

including labour laws, nor did it receive

any complaints related to recruitment.

RWEHA - AEE I E
BREOEHHEEAND
HEREERERERY
fB% - TrE SR R AR R B9

B EZ-

Number of employees

BETAH
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—

By gender 3]
Male B 289 299
Female peglis 89 91
Total 4E st 378 390
By employee category fEfEEEs
Full-time =8 375 380
Part-time B3 3 10
Total st 378 390
By age group FH4E R
18-30 18-30%% 72 81
31-45 31-455% 108 109
46-60 46-607% 127 133
Over 61 6158 £ 71 67
Total 4Est 378 390
By region E
United States ESJEY 378 390
Total 4ast 378 390

Table 6 — Breakdown of Total Employees by
Gender, Employee Category, Age Group,
and Region during the Reporting Period
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Turnover rate

mKREEE
2023 2022
—E-= s

By gender 14 2
Male B 9% 18%
Female 7% 15% 25%
By age group FHER
18-30 18-305% 22% 33%
31-45 31-455% 11% 27%
46-60 46-6075% 6% 11%
over 61 61 6% 9%
By region E
United States E[= 11% 20%
Overall 2ig 11% 20%

Table 7 — Breakdown of Employee Turnover Rate
by Gender, Age Group, and Region
during the Reporting Period

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The occupational health and safety of employees
is of paramount importance to the Group. A
Safety Committee, comprising personnel director,
safety manager and workshop routine officers,
has been established by the Group and is
responsible for the occupational health and safety
affairs of the Group. The committee is responsible
for developing safety management measures in
compliance with laws, making recommendations
to internal departments in accordance with
government standards and regulations, and
holding regular meetings to review occupational
health and safety issues raised by members. The
Group requires all employees to attend monthly
safety meetings covering the latest information
on occupational health and safety, internal safety
policies and safety incident reviews.
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The Group has established a risk assessment
mechanism that consists of a series of measures
including risk identification, analysis, evaluation,
treatment, monitoring and reviewing to reduce
risks to an acceptable level. The Group has
identified high-risk positions and implemented
occupational health and safety measures
accordingly to protect the safety of employees.
The Group formulates safety policies and
guidelines, and requires employees to comply
with the workflows, various safety measures
and guidance and take responsibilities for their
health and safety in the workplace. In addition,
the Group incorporates safety performance into
its annual performance evaluation, striving to
effectively promote occupational health and
safety. The Group has also developed measures
for drug abuse prevention. Through the Employee
Assistance Plan, local employees are provided
with training, diagnosis and consultation,
and receive professional advice and guidance
from professionals for drug and alcohol abuse
prevention.

No work-related fatalities occurred in the past
three years including the reporting period, and
the total number of lost days due to work injury
during the reporting period is 277 days. During
the reporting period, the Group has no cases
of violation of laws and regulations related to
occupational safety and health, including the
Occupational Safety and Health Act.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The future success of the Group depends on
professional and efficient employees. To lead its
employees to develop their potential and meet
its objectives, the Group provides employees with
development and training opportunities to ensure
the growth of its business. The Group formulates
the employee training policies and encourages
employees to participate in personal development
and job-related training courses. The Group
has also established the Educational Assistance
Plan which provides eligible employees with
subsidies for internal and external training. The
Group believes such arrangement can effectively
facilitate communication and team spirit, improve
technical skills and managerial capability, as well
as encourage employees to learn and grow in all
aspects.

The Group has a complete training system, which
sets out the management responsibilities of
the training directors of each department, and
provides corresponding learning and training
courses for staff to continuously enhance their
work-related knowledge and skills. The Group
provides induction training for new employees
in daily operations, and assigns experienced
employees as their mentors to provide guidance
and support. The Group follows up policy training
progress of new employees through the UltiPro
human resources system to ensure that they have
a thorough understanding of the Group's policies.
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Training rate and average training hours of
employees during the reporting period by gender
and employee category are as follows:

RSN RIER R E TR
B OMWE THEINXKRZINF
BRI

Training rate

1
2023 2022
—®=-= -

Gender ratio among Mg E TaEH

employees trained BN SRS TR
Male B 76% 77%
Female pegcs 24% 23%
Employee category ratio SIS TE PR

among employees trained B THEMNEIHIEEH
Senior management EREERE 5% 5%
Middle management RAREIEREE 8% 10%
General employee —mRET 87% 85%
Percentage of employees 2hiENNE TEH

trained to all employees BSLE 100% 100%

Note: The percentage of employees trained is

calculated by using the total number of

employees trained as the denominator.

Table 8 — Training Rate of Employees by Gender and

Employee Category during the Reporting Period

=
|

. BURAEHLHFENS
MENNETRBIERS S
B

R8- MEHANEUANKRETIHER
BIOMETHEIIE



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited
KEMERRIERERAT
Annual Report 2023 —E _=FF#

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI - RERHRS

Average training hours
completed per employee

SRESTHEINNFI9RHHK

2023 2022
—g_-= —=E-C
By gender 5
Male S 5.0 4.5
Female it 4.6 4.5
By employee category BIE5
Senior management EREERE 5.0 4.5
Middle management RIREEE 5.0 4.5
General employee —mRET 5.0 4.5
All employees FREES 5.0 4.5
Table 9 — Average Training Hours of Employees by Gender RI- HREHNEMERNKRETHER
and Employee Category during the Reporting 208 B TN TR
Period
LABOUR STANDARDS 4.  HIEA
(a)  Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced (a FIUEFAETH#HESFT
Labour
The Group is firmly against child labour KEBEBRTERTREE
and forced labour, and prohibits the T Ra#3B% TIRMEER]
employment of any child labour and forced 2R S E AR
labour in any operations and services. FREERETHEGIE T
Before hiring any candidates, the Group AEBTERTMAER
will check the age-related documents EZRBEREHER
to verify their age. All employees of the MEENER ARIZER
Group must reach the statutory minimum T MPAEETIHER

working age. BETETLEEE -
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The Group adheres to the principle of
fair and voluntary recruitment, strictly
forbids forced or fraudulent recruitment,
ensures that all employees work on a
voluntary basis, and prohibits coercive
means including withholding of documents
and other undesirable methods. Where
employees are required to work overtime
in the production process, the Group
will formulate overtime arrangements
with the employee representatives and
employees, and the working hours will
not exceed the maximum legal limits.
Moreover, management personnel will not
force employees to carry out work with
significant safety and health risks or illicit
work.

During the reporting period, the Group
found neither cases of incompliance
with relevant laws and regulations on
employment, including labour laws, nor
incidents in violation of the laws and
regulations on labour standards.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group maintains the quality and safety of
products and services through cooperation with
business partners, and places emphasis on the
promotion of communication and partnership
with business partners on a continuous basis.
During the reporting period, the Group had a
total of 297 active suppliers, of which 277 are
located in the United States and 20 in other
regions. The Group carries out supplier selection
and evaluation process based on quality and
price with reference to internal guidance and
comprehensive supplier management on all the
active suppliers to regulate the engagement
of suppliers. The Group also conducts regular
assessments on suppliers’ overall capabilities,
asset position, nature of business, industry
reputation, product quality, delivery of goods and
compliance with laws and regulations. The Group
only selects high-quality suppliers that meet
regulatory requirements, and will require suppliers
to obtain third-party certification to promote
the improvement and promotion of suppliers.
The Group further uses the Solumina Supplier
Rating System Software to manage and certify
suppliers to achieve the best product quality
and management. The Group also implements a
supplier consignment programme and increases
the inventory level from two months’ worth to
two years’ worth, thereby reducing the Scope
3 carbon footprint by cutting the number of
shipments.

BRI - RERHRS
AR

FEEBBEBBEANEE MU
ERNEEELERBENESEMN
TR RBARFERERERBY
BEAGE RSN A&
B AR HER L2975 B
277TRARER > M20RAI K H
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In order to review the environmental protection
and process certification of suppliers, the Group
will arrange inspectors to conduct on-site visits to
evaluate the production capacity and quality of
suppliers. Inspectors will evaluate the production
capacity, technical level, quality assurance ability
and supply capacity of suppliers according to
the actual needs, and review the safety and
environmental management qualifications, so
as to ensure that suppliers meet the relevant
requirements in terms of quality assurance, safety
and environmental responsibility. Furthermore, in
order to promote the procurement of more eco-
friendly products, the Group regularly reviews the
solid and hazardous waste performance indicators
of suppliers to understand the environmental
impact of their products, and develops more
environmental indicators to identify more eco-
friendly products in the procurement process.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

(a) Quality Assurance, Advertising and
Label

In order to ensure that the products meet
the quality and safety requirements,
the Group implements strict control
over quality management. The Group
develops different policies and guidelines
at the design, planning and production
stages, covering every step of the product
production and delivery process. Before
delivering products to customers, the
products must go through internal quality
control procedures stipulated by the Group
to ensure that their quality standards
comply with laws and regulations including
the requirements of the Federal Aviation
Administration and meet the quality
requirements of the Group.
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The Group will continuously strive to
ensure that its products meet regulatory
requirements and customer expectations,
regularly assess its internal production
processes to ensure customer satisfaction
and compliance with the requirements of
the Federal Aviation Administration, and
ensure that its advertising and labels are
accurate. If a product is found to have any
quality problems or other safety hazards,
the Group will immediately stop selling it,
announce product recall, notify relevant
companies and institutions to stop selling
and using it, and recall sold items. If
necessary, the Group will immediately stop
production, and report the product recall
and its management to the local regulatory
authority.

During the reporting period, the Group
discovered that some engine products that
were sold or shipped in the period from
2021 to 2023 had quality issues with their
crankshafts, so they had to be recalled
for safety reasons. The total number of
products recalled was 1,805, accounting
for 39% of the total engine products sold
or shipped in the period from 2021 to
2023.

RIE-HERELRERS
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(b)

Protection of Intellectual Property
Rights and Customer Information

In terms of safeguarding and protecting
intellectual property rights, the Group will
only select products provided by legitimate
manufacturers or suppliers to prevent
pirated goods from using its sales channels
to enter the market. Furthermore, the
Information Management Department of
the Group monitors the use of software to
ensure all software used is licensed, and
conducts regular inspections to ensure that
no unlicensed software is being used in the
computers of the Group.

To ensure the security of customer
information, the Group takes measures
to ensure that customer orders and
information are handled and properly
stored by dedicated personnel, and
unauthorised employees are strictly
prohibited from accessing them. By doing
so, it is guaranteed that customers’
sensitive information is properly protected.

The Group abided by relevant product
liability laws, such as the Consumer Data
Privacy and Security Act, and there was
no case of prosecution against the Group
for violation of laws related to product
responsibility and privacy protection.

(b)
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INTEGRITY

The Group is committed to promoting honest
business and fair competition, and has developed
comprehensive risk management code and
internal control code, including setting out
relevant policies in the employee handbook and
guiding employees to comply with the code of
conduct. The code of conduct clearly defines how
to deal with conflicts of interest and interests
such as gifts, so as to ensure that all staff uphold
the highest ethical, personal and professional
integrity.

To strengthen the integrity of employees in
governance practices, the Group has established
and implemented an internal integrity system,
set up the audit committee with independent
directors, and engaged a third-party agency
to audit its financial statements each year. The
Group has clearly defined misconduct such as
bribery, corruption, embezzlement, insider trading
and theft of the Group’s assets in the employee
handbook. The Group is entitled to terminate the
employment contract with any employee who
is bribed with money, gifts or commission, and
reserves the right to take further actions against
such person, in order to avoid corruption, fraud
and other criminal offences.
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The Group has formulated an effective whistle-
blowing procedure for employees, management
personnel and directors to report any misconduct
and dishonest conduct, and ensured that
employees can report matters of concern through
various channels in an absolutely confidential
manner. Where a case is substantiated after
investigation, the Group will take appropriate
corrective measures and disciplinary actions
against any persons involved. If it involves any
criminal offence, the Group will hand over the
case to the competent authority.

All new employees are required to complete
ethics training, while directors have to regularly
attend corruption prevention training to refresh
their knowledge. Directors and employees
received nearly 378 hours of corruption
prevention training during the reporting period.
The training materials include the latest anti-
fraud information and summaries of major fraud
cases and responses in various industries, and are
compiled in view of the Group’s conditions.

During the reporting period, the Group found
neither corruption incidents nor violations of
relevant laws and regulations, including the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

An enterprise and the community are inseparable
as a whole and an enterprise’s development
is also inseparable from the support and
recognition of the community. The Group deeply
understands the importance of making positive
contributions to the community where it operates
and considers community benefits as one of its
social responsibilities. The Group encourages its
employees to participate in charity and social
services, aiming to become a good corporate
citizen, better undertake its social responsibilities
and contribute to the community.

The Group's social responsibility policy is to
support local non-profit community organisations
by providing financial donations, in-kind services
and volunteer support, and we have set up
a Corporate Citizenship Committee which is
responsible for compiling an annual list of
corporate citizenship activities, coordinating
charitable activities, and establishing a central
point of contact for internal and external needs.
The Committee aims to establish and strengthen
ties with the communities where the Group
operates through various charitable activities as
well as financial assistance, in-kind services and
volunteer services.

The Group will continue to regularly review
its objectives and orientation for community
investment, and supervise community investment,
sponsorship and donation activities and the
relevant approval policies.
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During the reporting period, the Group
engaged in 159 hours of volunteer work and
over US$8,000 in various community volunteer
activities, including sponsoring sports games
and medical organisations, donating blood and
materials, and supporting food banks to help the
disadvantaged.

OUTLOOK

Going forward, the Group will, where appropriate, conduct
reviews on and make amendments to its disclosure aspects in
response to the needs of various laws, the Listing Rules and
internal management. The Group will also continue to carry
out more measures beneficial to the environment, society
and governance in its business operations to live up to its
commitment to the environment and society.

INDEX OF ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE
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A Environmental Chapter
IR =4: ]

ASPECT A.1 Emissions A1

&A1 B

KPI'A.1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data Al

FEIRAA e ) 18 48 e 4B RA BE I BUR

KPI'A.1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity Al

B A2 BERBEFREREE

KPI A.1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity Al

B A3 FRELEEREYRERTE

KPI A.1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity Al

B AL FREEESRREVEEREE
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A Environmental Chapter
IR =8:11]

KPI A.1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Al
them

5 A5 HAMPRET MBI E B R R A EDE L B RFT RIS BR

KPI' A.1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Al
handled, and a description of waste reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them

=R A6 HRIERERBEBEREMN G & RIEILFTET LAY E B R K
RIETE L BRI & R

ASPECT A.2 Use of Resources A2

FiEA2 BiRER

KPI A.2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and A2
intensity

B A2.1 REVESNERER NEZERAEEREE

KPI A.2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity A2

IR A2.2 MEKEREBE

KPI A.2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken A2
to achieve them

EEA23 BILFTE] LA AERE AN B IR kA ETE LB RN S
LA

KPI A.2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that A2
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them

B A2.4 #H SREUGE KR R B E R URPETII A KN @ B 1R
K #RIE BB L BRI IREN R B

KPI A.2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products, with A2

/IR A25

reference to per unit produced

N mFIAEEMHNEERSEEEMILE
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A Environmental Chapter
IR =8:11]
ASPECT A.3 Environment and Natural Resources A3
FEAS3 RIERXAER
KPI' A.3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the There was no accident
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to that had significant
manage them impacts on the
environment and
natural resources during
the period
1512 A3.1 HREBETHHRIERRABERNEARZERBIRNEESHE HIRARBHIRE RRA
FENITE BRNEAFENEW
ASPECT A.4 Climate Change A4
FE A4 RIEE1E
KPI A.4.1 Description of significant climate-related issues that have A4
affected and may affect the issuer, and the corresponding
actions
1512 A4 HAEEAAEEHETAEERENEARBGHBEE  &E
H17H
B Social
it
ASPECT B.1 Employment B1
S E B.A 1= 1%
KPI B.1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and B1
geographical region
1512 B.1.1 ZHR - EEEE  FERANKMER DHNEEEE
KPI B.1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical B1

EfZ B.1.2

region
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ASPECT B.2 Health and Safety B2

FEB.2 ERHARR

KPI B.2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of B2
the past three years (including the reporting year)

1518 B.2.1 BE=ZF (BREERFE) SFERITHAABKIE

KPI B.2.2 Lost days due to work-related injury B2

$51% B.2.2 AITEERXIIFARH

KPI B.2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, B2
how they are implemented and monitored

{512 B.2.3 HAPA RN RREEZ 2B URBARAITREREFE

ASPECT B.3 Development and Training B3

5 & B.3 BERREN

KPI B.3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee B3
category

1512 B.3.1 Bt RESEFEDHNZINEEB DL

KPI B.3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender B3
and employee category

5% B.3.2 BRI REEERE D BREETMZIIN TR

ASPECT B.4 Labour Standards B4

5 mE B.4 SITEA

KPI' B.4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid B4

$51Z B.4.1

KPI B.4.2

}51Z B.4.2

child and forced labour
Mt iG st B R IE ARy E e A Bt o 8 T R skl ss T

Description of steps taken to eliminate violation practices when
discovered

B B IRE R B REHIRA RIS NPT RIS B

There was no violation
during the period
HRAXBEREBER
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ASPECT B.5 Supply Chain Management B5
FEB.5 e E IR
KPI B.5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region B5
512 B.5.1 gite B DHNHEREE
KPI B.5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number B5
of suppliers on which the practices are being implemented,
how they are implemented and monitored
$51%Z B.5.2 Bt ERAERAHEENEN nERITERBANHEEREE
Mk BRIEOIRNNITREERF A
KPI B.5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social ~ B5
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored
512 B.5.3 Bl AR E RS ERANBE R RAMANIES > UK
RRITRERF A
KPI B.5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally B5
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored
1512 B.5.4 Bt EREREERREESARERERKRBNER » LURIERE
WITRERRE
ASPECT B.6 Product Responsibility B6
& B.6 EmEE
KPI B.6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for  B6

}51Z B.6.1

safety and health reasons
BERCEXEREHTRAZHEREHMEBLKRNE DL
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KPI B.6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and There were 2,504

$61Z B.6.2

KPI B.6.3

}51Z B.6.3

KPI B.6.4

}E/Z B.6.4

KPI B.6.5

$61Z B.6.5

how they are dealt with feedback items in total
and all of them were
followed up by special
personnel in accordance
with established
complaint and quality
assurance procedures
during the period

BREBNERKRBNEFEE URBEH G ZE HRHF254EER
ReEW EBHMLTHEA
KB E R FRERE
[ IR B 32
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting B6

intellectual property rights
o B 4 BE R (R PR A o8 EE 1 B R RV I B

Description of quality assurance process and product recall B6
procedures
HhESRTEREKRERBKRER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, B6
how they are implemented and monitored

HHUHBEEERRERMLBER  URERATRERT A
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ASPECT B.7 Anti-corruption B7

5 E B.7 R&B

KPI' B.7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices There was no legal
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Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the
laws of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group and an indication of
likely future development in the Group's business, can be found
in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 2 to 12 of this annual report which
forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 102 to 245 of this annual report.

At the Board meeting held on 28 March 2024, it was
recommended that a final dividend of HK$0.005 per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 be
proposed to be declared and paid to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on 14 June 2024.
The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 12 June 2024 to Friday, 14 June 2024, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 11 June 2024. The final
dividend is expected to be distributed to the shareholders on
21 June 2024, if approved by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 31 May 2024.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to

allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia, the following factors:

(1) the Group's actual and expected financial results;
(2) the Group's working capital requirements,

capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(3) the Group's liquidity position; and
(4) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The payment of dividend is subject to the compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, including the laws of Bermuda
and the Company’s bye-laws. The Board will continue to review
the Dividend Policy from time to time.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements, is set out on page 246 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’'s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$174,707,000. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$1,857,729,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS FEHEERER
The percentages of the Group's purchases attributable to the HAEBTFEHERAGAERZFEETD
Group's major suppliers are as follows: BT
2023 2022
—E-=HF =
% %
Percentage of purchases: HIRBERER DL
From the largest supplier KERAHERD 9 5
From the five largest suppliers kB HKMHERS 20 15

The percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the Group’s
major customers are as follows:

rERTERRAGAEBRZHEETDLLN
T

2023 2022
—B_-= ==
% %
Percentage of sales: LIHEF DL
To the largest customer RERAER 30 32
To the five largest customers RKEEKREE 73 71

Except for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed in
the section entitled “NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS” below, none of the Directors or any of their
close associates or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers and customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Board during the year and up to the date of this report
comprises:

Executive Directors:

Huang Yongfeng
Yu Xiaodong
Jiao Yan

Zhang Zhibiao

Li Peiyin

Non-executive Director:

Chow Wai Kam

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Zhang Ping

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Huang
Yongfeng, Ms. Jiao Yan and Mr. Li Peiyin will retire by rotation.
All of them, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company, as at the date of this report,
still considered all the independent non-executive Directors as
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 13 to 18 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to
their qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary year-
end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the Group
at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate, and
discretionary share options.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or entities connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company's holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
during or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and the chief executive in the shares, share
options, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (a) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

ERRITHAREHI A  HHRARR RIE
55 Z HE i B 3%

RIBZ=ZF+"RA=+—H " &EFKEE
TERABRARBRNEBREE ESMHE
157 (TR R HAERG)) EXVEBFTIE) 2R
7~ BERRAE R R MBS P HEE ()AL A
ARBREEST R ERMEIS2FRAETHE
FzEEMRZERIKE ; H(bRFERE
STRIZAA G A B J B 32 By 2 1 2 5003 2 U
T

REABREBRZEFE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of issued ordinary shares held in the

FEERTLERHE Company

Personal Interests of Corporate Total NG|

Name of Director Capacity interests spouse interests interests RigEZ

BENS a1 B A FefEE AEEE REiniE BAFRLE

Yu Xiaodong Beneficial owner 1,258,000 - - 1,258,000 0.01%
TER BERBEA

Save as disclosed above and except for certain Directors who
had non-beneficial interests in certain subsidiaries of the
Company held for the benefits of the Company, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive had or was deemed to have
any interests and short positions in the shares, share options,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (a) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above and in the section of “Share
option scheme” below, during the year no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company had been granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age;
no such rights had been exercised by them; and none of
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, the
Company adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to contribute to the business development and growth of
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract or retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The share option scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
Further details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Since the adoption of the share option scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2023.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the following interests of 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREMA LIRS BRAERER
i PA

RIEZ=ZF+"A=+—H'ExREARE
B RPAERPEIBRFEZEE LM
FREC B AR A BI5% U LB BEITRAERN
T

Long positions: e
Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital as at
31 December
2023
Number of g
Capacity and ordinary +-HA=+—H
Name of shareholders nature of interest shares held {(LYZBEAXFBEHIT
BR%ATE BMEEDEE s EEREE BAEZzERLE
Tacko International Limited (“Tacko”)  Beneficial owner 1,895,559,000 20.37
EmEEA
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited Beneficial owner 2,421,341,390 26.03
("AVIC International (HK) Group”)
PHERR (B8 £EBERAT EmBEBA
(TR () £8))
AVIC International (HK) Group Through a controlled corporation 4,316,900,390 46.40
RERR (B8 £ 8 B —EREEE
AVIC International Through a controlled corporation 4,316,900,390 46.40
A A B B B —EREEE
Aviation Industry Corporation of Through a controlled corporation 4,316,900,390 46.40

China, Ltd ("AVIC")
TEMETEEEGRAF BE—ERELZR
(TFRAT2))



Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with
the Company, Tacko is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
International (HK) Group, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of AVIC International. AVIC International is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC. Accordingly, each of AVIC
International (HK) Group, AVIC International and AVIC is
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Tacko.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had the following continuing
connected transaction, certain details of which are disclosed in
compliance with the requirements of Charter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Sale services of engines, engines parts and related
services

On 25 October 2021, the Company entered into a 2021 sale
framework agreement with China Aviation Industry General
Aircraft Co., Ltd. (“China Aviation”),
Group will sell engines, engine parts and related services to

pursuant to which the

China Aviation and/or its associates (excluding the Group)
for use in new aircraft manufacture and for the sale of parts
into the aftermarket for maintenance, repair and overhaul for
a term from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024. Further
details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 25 October 2021 and the circular of the Company dated
17 November 2021.
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On 25 September 2023, the Company entered into the
supplemental 2021 sale framework agreement with China
Aviation to revise the original annual cap from US$38.7 million
to US$44.9 million for the year ending 31 December 2023 and
from US$39.2 million to US$50.4 million for the year ending
31 December 2024. Further details were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 September 2023 and
the circular of the Company dated 18 October 2023.

The continuing connected transaction of the Company is
included in the disclosure of related party transactions in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, and had confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction had been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the terms of the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The total amounts of the sale income disclosed above during
the year under review have not exceeded the annual cap
amounts of US$44.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$352 million).
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Ernst & Young, the Company’s external auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information,
and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the
non-exempt continuing connected transactions disclosed above
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party transaction
or continuing related party transaction set out in note 38
to the financial statements that falls into the category of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction that
needs to be disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirmed that the Company had complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director had interests in the
following businesses conducted through the company named
below which are considered to compete or be likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

Name of Director

ERNA

Name of company

AL EmttE

Nature of interest

ESNHFUEH L2 ks

FR THEFEBTHARRAFA TINES
WD MZFEBRBLTRUERER
7%&‘@2&%.E’J%i‘%ﬁﬁﬁa‘aITﬁbEE%ﬁF’aﬁ

BHRE

Nature of competing business

MPEBEEH

Chow Wai Kam
BE%

CK Asset Holdings Limited
RIBXEEERRAHE HITES

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from the
Excluded Businesses. When making decisions on the businesses
of the Excluded Businesses of the Group, Mr. Chow, in the
performance of his duties as Director, has acted and will
continue to act in the best interest of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year 2023.

Executive director -

Property development and
investment (“Excluded
Businesses”)
MEZRREE
(TERBRZETS])
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

On 29 May 2023, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has retired as the
auditor of the Company. Following the retirement of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company, Ernst & Young
has been appointed as the auditor of the Company. Save as
disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 have been audited by Ernst & Young
who shall retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

Huang Yongfeng
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B|IZHETR S

e
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CONTINENTAL AEROSPACE TECHNOLOGIES HOLDING
LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 102 to 245, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B S
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FREtEIE (@)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MBEHEHE

HANSHMANMEESERETER

goodwill

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible assets and

HE - -BERRE RAEEE - AMEFLEERBENE

The impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, other intangible assets and
goodwill is identified as a key audit matter as
these assets are quantitatively significant to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole.
HrME - BERRE - EREESE -HMETLEE
REEBHGREMHERRBEEAFTEERS  HMARKH
BEH R ARARESEE

The property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, other intangible assets and goodwill
amounting to approximately HK$618 million, HK$252
million, HK$1,341 million and HK$14 million,
respectively, as at 31 December 2023, in aggregate
accounted for 56% of the total assets of the Group
as at that date. Under HKFRSs, goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Company performs its
annual impairment test on the cash-generating unit
to which the goodwill is allocated as at 31 December.
In addition, each year, the Company assesses whether
there are any indications of impairment for the
(group of) cash generating units (“CGUs"). The test
and assessment are largely based on management’s
expectations and estimates of future results of the
(group of) CGUs. The impairment test is based on
the recoverable value of the relevant cash-generating
units.
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We assessed the competence, qualification and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by the
Group.

RMETE SEEEFNIINEMEEMINEN-EE
REBM-

We reviewed management’s assessment of the
recoverable amounts. Our audit procedures
included examining and recalculating management’s
discounted cash flow projections for the
determination of the value-in-use and assessing
key assumptions by comparison to the historical
performance of the CGUs. We also performed
sensitivity analyses on the assumptions used in the
cash flow projections. Further, we involved our
internal valuation specialists to assist us with our
assessment of the methodology and the discount
rates used to determine the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

ERYRER
RBEEHE @

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEEER

BANSEAMANAREN ERETEE

The Group’s management concluded that there is no
impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, other intangible assets and goodwill
during the year ended 31 December 2023. Details
are set out in notes 3, 13, 15, 16 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
EEEEEESHAR VME - BRERRB EHE
EE - HthWEFNEEABENRBE_Z_=F1+_A8
=+ —HEFERTEBBE FHEHNGSHWHERR
MEEE3 131516517 ©

We also assessed the related disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

HATFF RS BIRERTAVERIRE -

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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B S
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lai Ho Yin.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2024

ERYRER

REMMESHRSMBRREAENS
£ #

BREMEBIN  RMPALEBELEZEGERT
BB HE KEZH EAESBRRSE
BERFAESSRHEEALEFRNERNE
RERFE o

HPERNBEZZETRIZBH RAAKRME
MEEMBUMNEREXRERER LA
tPIBEE IS EMKI AT ERME
UMENFERGMAEMSEERE URBHERY
BIU MR E B FTIREAITE S P s i (B8
A) e

NEBEZZEGEBNZEET  HARER
EERATAHGEGHERENEARAE
2> AMEMERETFE  HAIEZRHEMR
ERHWMBEFRIE RIFERIERT A
ARRBELERR NEBRFERNERLT
MRGERHAERMABRSESTERESTESGMN
NEEBRRBBEEN ARG  HARTE
TERERSETBBZEE

EERBIZBMBENEFEEGBAR

LR o

L EsHMERFR
HEEETEN

&8
—EEF=A=+NAR

101



102

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

APEMZERIRIERBRAT
Annual Report 2023 — 2 — = F 43R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS#Z &8 &

Year ended 31 December 2023 E T _=F+_B=+—HILFE

2023 2022
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 F#E5T FAET
REVENUE W& &= 5 1,830,186 1,665,515
Cost of sales HE K (1,262,612) (1,157,027)
Gross profit EF 567,574 508,488
Other income and gains, net E i A R U & % 5 43,554 21,924
Impairment losses under expected credit FEEA15 %\Eﬂﬁ’fﬁdﬁ?z
loss model, net of reversal BAEEIE > 0BR[] (427) (5,954)
Impairment of other intangible assets HmEREERE = (101,142)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R =iHE A (69,107) (41,361)
Administrative expenses THEEER (311,185) (293,665)
Research and development costs i 2% B A (53,611) (38,244)
Other operating expenses Hh&E &R (68,469) (315)
Finance costs R 7 (13,514) (14,076)
Share of loss of an associate DM E AT EE (4,112) (8,390)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX PRAR AT A 6 90,703 27,265
Income tax credit FRIGIRIE SR 10 71,506 23,567
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR TABHEE AR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO A EFEHF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 162,209 50,832
EARNINGS PER SHARE AT ERERFTEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BitsikRER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
Basic and diluted BEARK#E HK1.74 cents HK0.55 cent
12 1.74#1W 0.5578 1L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 42 & 2 HINE R

Year ended 31 December 2023 E_ZE _=F+_B=+—HILFE

2023 2022
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
K&t FET FAET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR EEEF 162,209 50,832
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hit2mikss ~ (§518)
INCOME/(LOSS)
ltems that may be reclassified HEBrEENDBEER
subsequently to profit or loss: ZI5H :
Exchange differences on translation MEBINEBEE Y
of foreign operations BE 2 =28 13,771 (31,087)
Reclassification of cumulative HE—BEEARE
translation reserve upon disposal HERFINE B
of a joint venture BN HE - 7,596
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE HEgvkERSBEEED
INCOME/(LOSS) THAT MAY BE ZHth2mEE  (8518)
RECLASSIFIED SUBSEQUENTLY 3B
TO PROFIT OR LOSS 13,771 (23,491)
Item that will not be reclassified HeBrgdmoEse
subsequently to profit or loss: Bm2IEE
Actuarial gains on defined benefit RGN 2BEENE
plans, net of tax (0K IER) 31 590 7,089
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE TEHMEBEmE - (§518)
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, (3N IEE)
NET OF TAX 14,361 (16,402)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Z2RQF#ER AELGEE
FOR THE YEAR, ATTRIBUTABLE 2HEEERE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 176,570 34,430
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42 & B4R R«

At 31 December 2023 R-E_=F+_H=+—H

2023 2022
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
g2 FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ FRE R 13 617,935 602,498
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15(a) 252,384 264,010
Goodwill GRS 16 13,841 13,439
Other intangible assets HMhEFREE 17 1,340,863 1,387,327
Investment in an associate REE AT Z?ﬁféf 18 10,029 14,409
Debt investment at fair value through % AFEzt AEHE
profit or loss BHEE 25 = 1,950
Equity investments designated at fair AT EF AEMEE
value through other comprehensive Wiz AT E
income 19 2,343 390
Deferred tax assets BIETRIBE E 32 - 6,615
Total non-current assets FREMEEMLE 2,237,395 2,290,638
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories FE 20 645,985 522,183
Loan to an associate EHE AR IRENER 18 7,158 6,937
Trade receivables FEUL B 5 IR TR 21 129,444 96,739
Contract assets ENEE 22 24,187 =
Prepayments, deposits and other TERIE 12 & R HA
receivables FELBR R 24 52,658 31,001
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary — FEURE & M & A B3k 18 23 6,957 27,598
Time deposits EHEM 26 628,863 245,849
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 26 246,417 578,903
Total current assets MEEEARE 1,741,669 1,509,210
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &2 8 I1iZ kR &R

At 31 December 2023 R -_E_=F+_F=+—H

2023 2022
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Htat FAET FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENBEE
Trade payables FE1T B 5 BRR 28 140,790 138,233
Other payables, accruals and provisions E fhfE{tERFN ~ FE5+ & 3
Tz 5 A 29 272,767 182,692
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FANIEEINIEPNGIE S 27 272 5,580
Amount due to an intermediate FE < Fh B $2E RS A B I8
holding company 27 25,117 25,739
Lease liabilities HEadE 15(b) 7,149 7,398
Contract liabilities a8 E 30 18,943 16,941
Tax payable FEFRIE 41,821 46,200
Total current liabilities mEBaERE 506,859 422,783
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFRE 1,234,810 1,086,427
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELERTBER
LIABILITIES 3,472,205 3,377,065
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREIEE
Lease liabilities HESsE 15(b) 282,199 286,701
Defined benefit plan obligations RGN EET 31 2,927 3,630
Contract liabilities a8 E 30 65,369 36,127
Provisions B 29 37,743 55,825
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEEAME 32 88,506 175,891
Total non-current liabilities RSB EEE 476,744 558,174
Net assets BEFE 2,995,461 2,818,891
EQUITY i
Share capital & 7~ 33 930,337 930,337
Reserves A 35 2,065,124 1,888,554
Total equity HmARE 2,995,461 2,818,891

Huang Yongfeng
HEIE
Director

EF

Yu Xiaodong
FHRR

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY {2 S m S8 &

Year ended 31 December 2023 E T _=F+_B=+—HILFE

Share
Share premium
capital account

& R aER

HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
(note 35)
(Hf3£35)
At 1 January 2022 RW_E__#F#—HF—H 930,337 1,857,729
Profit for the year KERF = =
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year: AEAMEEKE (B18)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign BhEBIEREEZ ERER
operations = =
Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve HE—BAERRBHE R
upon disposal of a joint venture MEREERDE = =
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans, net of tax T ZB/EF) T BB HE I
(NkRIER) - S
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year rE2EWE (BB L% - -
At 31 December 2022 RZE__F#+-RA=+—H 930,337 1,857,729*
At 1 January 2023 R_E_=F—H—H 930,337 1,857,729
Profit for the year RERF = =
Other comprehensive income for the year: AEAMPENS
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MEBIEBELE Y ERER
operations = =
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans, net of tax EZB@F) T EIBE W
(R RIER) = -
Total comprehensive income for the year EEZENREEE - -
At 31 December 2023 RZFZ=F5+"RA=+—H 930,337 1,857,729
i These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEHEESRPOEGESMBRIRITNEG
HK$2,065,124,000 (2022: HK$1,888,554,000) in the consolidated B $2,065,124,00087% (TS -~ & :

statement of financial position. 1,888,554,0007% 7t) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &8 s8R

Year ended 31 December 2023 E_ZE _=F+_B=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERARTDEBA

Fair value

reserve of

equity

investments

designated

at fair value

Asset through other
revaluation comprehensive Reserve Translation Retained Total
reserve income fund reserve profits equity

BATEFA

HthEEWmZ

RAREZ
BESMH#RE RTEHB T B ok BEat ERRE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFHT TET THET THT TFHET TET

(note 35) (note 35)
(Hf3£35) (Hf5£35)

130,615 (224,452) 183 (15,918) 105,967 2,784,461
- - - - 50,832 50,832
- - - (31,087) - (31,087)
- - - 7,596 - 7,596
- - - - 7,089 7,089
- - - (23,491) 57,921 34,430
130,615* (224,452)* 183* (39,409)* 163,888* 2,818,891
130,615 (224,452) 183 (39,409) 163,888 2,818,891
- - - - 162,209 162,209
- - - 13,771 - 13,771
- - - - 590 590
- - - 13,771 162,799 176,570

130,615* (224,452)* 183* (25,638)* 326,687* 2,995,461
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 28 IR&

Year ended 31 December 2023 E T _=F+_FB=+—HILFE

MER

2023 2022
Zg-= ZEICE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
it FAET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &&EE2HERE
Profit before tax PRI AR R 90,703 27,265
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs MBREX 7 13,514 14,076
Share of loss of an associate DMEBERE 2 EA 4,112 8,390
Bank interest income RITHI B WA 5 (28,052) (9,137)
Interest income on loan to an associate BBEABRENERZ 5
HEHA (373) (391)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE - BREMHE 6
equipment 258 18,749 315
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of FEMR, OB 6
inventories (17,482) 11,557
Impairment of other intangible assets HEtmyEERE 6 - 101,142
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1¥ - BEMREZIFE 6 36,286 32,992
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 6 14,472 14,194
Amortisation of other intangible assets HEthmy B E 2 B 6 86,669 83,807
Impairment losses under expected credit loss RUEZERNEREE 6
model on trade receivables, net of reversal BEREYET 2 BERE
IS AT 427 1,347
Impairment losses under expected credit loss HEWERRNEREE 6
model on other receivables, net of reversal BEREYET 2 BERE
IS AT - 4,600
Impairment losses under expected credit loss AR EARRRNERR 6
model on loan to a joint venture net of FHEERBRETZ
reversal RERE NEREED - 7
Fair value gain on an investment property REMEZ A TENHE 5 - (700)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate BAHEHE AT 2R B 5 - (3,852)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HESERTFZHHE 5 - (6,515)
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets HEHMBRT EEZER 5 - 326
Gain on early termination of a lease RAKRIEAEZFEB 5 - (10)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &S8R RER

Year ended 31 December 2023 E_ZE _=F+_B=+—HILFE

2023 2022
Zg-= St
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Kz FAE7T FET
Operating cash flows before movements in NBREEEREFAN
working capital KEHenE 219,025 279,413
Increase in inventories FEEM (104,152) (67,724)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables R E ZERTuED / (2m) (32,315) 14,394
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from a fellow  FEWREZ KB A SIE
subsidiary "L/ (&) 20,668 (1,614)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other BAMIE e kA
receivables e AR TR 8 AN (15,071) (10,337)
Increase in contract assets BHEELEN (24,187) =
Increase in trade payables et B ZERFUE 2,339 12,264
Increase in other payables, accruals and provisions EFETEEI Es BR K
BHEEM 64,303 55,147
Increase in contract liabilities EHBEEM 31,043 18,394
Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit plan EREEN G EEEEm/
obligations (A) (119) 343
Cash generated from operations EEEL RS 161,534 300,280
Interest paid BRAHE (13,373) (14,001)
Tax paid BARE (9,310) (8,535)
Net cash flows from operating activities RESEBMEIRENETE 138,851 277,744
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES K& EBZHERE
Proceeds from withdrawal of time deposits with ~ RREVRZ/IHHBB=1E7 K
original maturity over three months ERERNREHRE 600,658 249,757
Placements of new time deposits with original EHRIAEBE=EAN
maturity over three months WEBER (984,590) (495,606)
Purchases of items of property, plant and BANE- -BRENREEER 13
equipment (69,665) (53,630)
Additions of other intangible assets NNEMEREE 17 (26,260) (24,580)
Bank interest received EURITH E 21,402 5,651
Proceeds on disposal of items of property, plant ~ HENE BEREEE
and equipment PR3 FUE 1,569 317
Net cash flows used in investing activities REETBHFRZRERETE (456,886) (318,091)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 28 IR&

Year ended 31 December 2023 E T _=F+_FB=+—HILFE

3Zz

IIL§§

2023 2022
—ECZ= _ECCF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RmEEF#HzHREHE
Principal portion of lease payments REMHZERESTH 36(b) (7,620) (6,189)
Repayment to an intermediate holding company BT EERATER 36(b) (1,288) (522)
Advance from/(repayment to) a fellow subsidiary BRI BAT R/ 36(b)
(BRZMBARER (5,308) 5,580
Net cash flows used in financing activities RETHFERZRERETH (14,216) (1,131)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERREEEMALVBE
EQUIVALENTS (332,251) (41,478)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ RENZEERIREEEY 578,903 623,119
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEHTETH (235) (2,738)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF REXRZREERRESEEY
YEAR 246,417 578,903
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERAEEBMER IR
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B RIRITE R 26 242,580 324,013
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity YR REIER DR =1EA 26
of less than three months when acquired MERRTHED 3,837 254,890
246,417 578,903
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &2 & I F5 iR &R M5t

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is
located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM 10, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was mainly involved in the
general aviation aircraft piston engine business.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the immediate
holding company of the Company is AVIC International
(HK) Group Limited and the ultimate holding company of
the Company is Aviation Industry Corporation of China,
Ltd., which is incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC").

1.

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

ARREREH

Continental Aerospace Technologies
Holding Limitedok B fT 2 B2 £ B8
BR2E (TARE) #—BRER
EAMMIZBRAB KRB 25
= &= A Victoria Place, 5th Floor,
31 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 10,
Bermuda-°

FRO-FAEETENSTBEAMERE
EERHMER -

ARBEER R FARENEEER
RBERTMER (FB) EEBERAF
ARBHNRRERABDZTEMET
FEBARQ2E (MPEARKNE
(THRE) SEMALIL) o
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31 December 2023 —Z2-_=F+_"F=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1. 2AFRKREREH (@)

MEBATEE
KRB EEMBABNFHBAOT !

follows:
Percentage of
Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AT
and business share capital RET A
Name SR BRTEER/ Direct Indirect Principal activities
E2T AR E R 2 Az Ef Mg XEXEH
Motto Investment Limited  British Virgin US$68,200,000 100 - Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong
Motto Investment Limited ~ EBEZEE /B8  68,200,000E 7 100 - REZR
Continental Motors British Virgin Us$1 - 100  Investment holding
Deutschland Limited Islands/Hong Kong
Continental Motors HBRLEHE/BE EF - 100 KEZR
Deutschland Limited
Continental Aerospace United States of uss4 - 100 Design, development and
Technologies, Inc. America ("USA") production of general aviation
aircraft piston engines and spare
parts and provision of aftermarket
services and support for piston
engines
Continental Aerospace ZHBERE 4ETT - 100 R -HEREEBAMTRE
Technologies, Inc. (T£E)) EEEMUREGURAEES

PR UERRBE LS
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31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2XBR&EERSEE @)

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEATEN &)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KRB FENBREINFEBUOT | (&

follows: (continued)

Percentage of

Place of equity attributable
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AT
and business share capital RET A
Name MBI BRTEER/ Direct Indirect Principal activities
28 M RERME Az Ef Mg TEXEH
Continental Aerospace Germany EUR25,000 - 100 Design, development and
Technologies GmbH production of general aviation
aircraft piston engines and spare
parts and provision of aftermarket
services and support for piston
engines
Continental Aerospace & 25,0008 7t - 100 R RAEREEBEMERE
Technologies GmbH GEEEMREEGURAEER
MREUHERRE RS
Continental Motors (Beijing) PRC/Mainland China US$1,000,000 - 100 Sales of aircraft engines and parts
Co., Ltd.*
AEEESHE OER) FRE,/ FE R 1,000,000 7 - 100 HEMELIHHRIHG
BREMAR
CATIC Helicopter (H.K.) British Virgin us$2 100 - Investment holding
Limited Islands/Hong Kong
CATIC Helicopter (H.K.) HERUHE/BE 2ETT 100 - REER
Limited
J The subsidiary is registered as wholly-foreign-owned e ZM B ABRIERE AR MAILA
enterprise under PRC law. SEEERE
The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company PR B A AT ERDAEAERD
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally AEEEETE ARt AEEEE
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial SBEEALNUEAATINBAS o &
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of EDA (55 H M E LS BB R

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

_ , ! t8LRABBRTR
result in particulars of excessive length.
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31 December 2023 —Z2-_=F+_"F=+—H

2
2.1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and a debt
investment at fair value through profit or loss which
have been measured at fair value. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

BHKE
EuEE

REMBRRNDBESESMNAE
(TEBEMAE) BHRZ2EBYH
REER (BBMBREER) (B
FIEEAMBREER - EEGTER
(TEBEHER)) k2B REER
AP KERERHE - ZSFHBR
RIOBEBEEERFENRE  ERA
FESAHEMEZERZZRERER
BAFTEAABZZEBERENDRA
FEFEB - GEMBREUBTZY
BREBERIN FTEEEHNERDA
ERELNT-

TeEE
REUBRRBERAASRENBAT
R TAER)BE_S_ZF+=
B=+—BLEEZHBRF KB
NEEA LB ERERBEEE B8
(BIEABTEER) - HMAEEM®SH
WRENBEBE 2 o &0 RAE
BN EZEERN  BEMERESRW
CEABINES BPAEERERFIRE
FENUFEWKREASERESHNER
BN R EZERRF MIRAARE
BB
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of
an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c) the Group’'s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

21
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RNEE (D)

SEBE (@)

—RBERT A—EEE NSHRE
B RESIR A RATER LD RE
REARDASBRERAEOUHEF
BIEEERTHERRTREHRAE
ARNENBEEE—EREER
R BE

(a) HBERKREATDHMREEFTAH
ABEHNZHE;

(b) EHMEXHRBFELENERN S K

(0 TEENREEREERER-

MEASNRERFRAENMB®RE
RARARE —HNEAHRER-
MBABZEERBAEBIGIEG#E
ZHEREEARIR —BEHEEGA
fRoEEZSERIEKIEZRIE

BmhHMEE WSS EME 5T ER
BRAEBZHRBEE ANKRIFE
RtEm BIELREENIFERED
ZRBEREB BAEERBEAFME
ZRZBEMZABEEEARBDBEE
ke #m WA -BAXRREERE
B R G RZE IR o
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21

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the
translation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

21

RNEE D)

SEBE (@)

it 55 8 R 1B 0 R BR _E PR3 = B IR A
RAZHF-—ERSEAS A%
EEEERTNAENRREAT

MBABZFARERELEED (/x*ﬁ_
REESE) B FZ AR

ﬁK%@%%‘iﬂﬁ%@ﬁZE%M@’
Q‘J,,\Jtﬁﬁ PHMEE (BEEE)
B EAIEERER RIREHE ; E’zﬁﬁ
Fﬁf?“’jﬁcﬁ&ﬁzﬂfﬁﬁﬂzﬁ s
Eﬁllﬂ:éiz BROUES 8 o o AT Y
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &2 & I F5 iR &R M5t

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to

HKAS 1 and HKFRS

Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

Bt BEREE RiNE

AEECHAEENYEREE KR
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised
HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described
below:

(a) Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to
disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an
entity's financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
The Group has disclosed the material accounting
policy information in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements. The amendments did not
have any impact on the measurement, recognition
or presentation of any items in the Group’s
financial statements.

(b) Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since
the Group’s approach and policy align with the
amendments, the amendments had no impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

22 EHBEREREE @
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31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@]

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it
no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required
to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions.

The Group has applied the amendments on
temporary differences related to leases as at 1
January 2022. The application of the amendments
did not have any material impact on the
overall deferred tax balances presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
the related deferred tax balances qualified for
offsetting under HKAS 12.

22 EHEREPREE @

(©)

BHEGTEANE1 25 BT A
BE—XEELHNEERERE
BRI EE I B R EE R G TE
Al 12588940 & HEER B SMB R
HLE EEFBERREEME
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Ry HMBEREREE A
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Amendments to HKAS 12 /International Tax
Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules introduce
a mandatory temporary exception from the
recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes
arising from the implementation of the Pillar
Two model rules published by the Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development.
The amendments also introduce disclosure
requirements for the affected entities to
help users of the financial statements better
understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two
income taxes, including the disclosure of current
tax related to Pillar Two income taxes separately
in the periods when Pillar Two legislation
is effective and the disclosure of known or
reasonably estimable information of their
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in
which the legislation is enacted or substantively
enacted but not yet in effect. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively. Since the
Group did not fall within the scope of the Pillar
Two model rules, the amendments did not have
any impact to the Group.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EEGEREMNEERBRS
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING #£8
STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, REBURNAMBHRERAEBUT
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in EEMEEREXNNSEBITITETE
these financial statements. The Group intends to apply REFEH AEBERITIZELETDN
these revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become ERAMBREER WER) £ 306N
effective. MER -
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of SEUBHREER REZHAHE
and HKAS 28 Assets between an FIOE R EHE REFEE
Investor and its Associate G ERE28% LA ZHZEH
or Joint Venture? ZAE5T EHEBFE
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and SRV BHREER ERMHLIZHE
Leaseback’ 1658 2 B5] I=F-§
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities SBA gt BIE74E%
as Current or Non- FISR 2 1EET BB IE B
current (the “2020 (IZE-=F
Amendments”)' 4 BT A]) 4
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with HB gt b3 224989
Covenants (the "2022 EE A H) FETBEE
Amendments”)! 4 (—2=-—=—%
(CHIE DR
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance SR ENETIR HETHEZH
and HKFRS 7 Arrangements’ REAVHRES
ZERE7IRZIEET
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability? SAEgtER = R
F2158 2 85T
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January L RIZ-NE—A—HRZEBREBEZ
2024 FERBEN
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RIZE-_AFE—A—HRIZEBHREBEZ
2025 FERBEN
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available E WO T Z 586 £ B M a R
for adoption
4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 4 EBRBESRUBHREXNZES —1&
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of N O S IEBEREBEZNED B EHE
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a D ER S _EFEZEITRE
Jerm Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause TTEZBEImERET Uk —18
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no FEEEY MBS RRITF S

change in conclusion
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
was removed by the HKICPA. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of HKFRS
16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that
a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of a
liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the reporting
date affect the classification of that liability as current
or non-current. Additional disclosures are required for
non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months
after the reporting period. The amendments shall be
applied retrospectively with early application permitted.
An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is
required to apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments,
and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments and whether existing loan
agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The
disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended
to assist users of financial statements in understanding
the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an
entity's liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity
risk. Earlier application of the amendments is permitted.
The amendments provide certain transition reliefs
regarding comparative information, quantitative
information as at the beginning of the annual reporting
period and interim disclosures. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group's share of the post-
acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
an associate is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in
the associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of an associate
is included as part of the Group's investment in an
associate.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate
or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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24

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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24

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income and a
debt investment at fair value through profit or loss at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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24

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for a non-financial asset is
required (other than inventories and deferred tax assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.
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24

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i)  is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the parent of the Group.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

3% t0 3%

Over the lease terms
20% - 33%

4% - 50%

20% - 25%

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial

year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant

and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 30 years.

Product technology, licence and completed
programs

The product technology, licence and completed
programs are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 to 30 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their useful lives of 15 years.

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their useful lives of 1 to 5 years.
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24

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for certain short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Where applicable,
the cost of a right-of-use asset also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:
Leasehold land 2 to 75 years
Buildings 2 to 75 years
Motor vehicles 2 to 5 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of properties (that is those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases
of office equipment that are considered to be of
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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24

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a debt instrument to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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24

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on the equity investments are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.
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24

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the

Group's consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs"”) for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

24

EXGEE (@

MBRENRIE (@
—RR7E (B

RERSHH AEEFGHEND M
BLURERMTANGEERBASRE
KR e ETHER  AEEBRRER
HEMTAZELEENNRAKRRY D HE
RORTMTAZELEEONERET
EE® . EBHARNHT LB AE
BN ESHNSEEREENE
K BEEERAEEER - BG4
FBHBEIOXRE  AEBABREE
AP R

MENNREIRIOKR > AEBEIHHY
HBEEBN -AM AETHBRT W
ARSI BEHRBTEERREES
EEFANEREERAERMTH
FEERBBBAREEGNTR ~&E
NAERAMFEEEN NLES
ERARLO GRS RE B GHE
MBEE-



24

Continental Aerospace Technologies Holding Limited

REMMZERITIERERAR
Annual Report 2023 —E _=FF#

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &2 & I F5 iR &R M5t

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
as financial liabilities at amortised cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include amount due to an
intermediate holding company, amount due to a fellow
subsidiary, trade payables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, and lease liabilities.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and
other payables and amounts due to an intermediate
holding company and a fellow subsidiary)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables and
amounts due to an intermediate holding company
and a fellow subsidiary are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined
above, less any bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions (continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale
of certain products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during
the warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type
warranties granted by the Group are initially recognised
based on sales volume and past experience of the level
of repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate. The warranty-related cost is revised
annually.

Product claim provision is made when there are
present expected claims which challenge the safety
of the products. The Group has general liability and
other insurance policies to cover product claims. Initial
recognition is based on historical experience. The initial
estimate of product claim costs is revised annually based
on current year’s development of present expected
claims.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and an associate, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

Revenue from the sale of aircraft engines and
spare parts is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the aircraft
engines and spare parts.

Provision of repair and maintenance services for
aircraft engines

Revenue from the provision of repair and
maintenance services for aircraft engines is
recognised over time in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using

the effective interest method by applying the rate that

exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over

the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter

period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Contract assets

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration under the contract terms, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.
They are reclassified to trade receivables when the right

to the consideration becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF scheme.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operate
in Germany are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Defined benefit plan

A subsidiary of the Group sponsors a defined benefit
pension plan as well as a retiree medical and life
insurance plan. Its defined benefit pension plan requires
contributions to be made to a third party trustee
managed fund. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined actuarially. Actuarial
gains and losses for the defined benefit plan are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the
present value of the defined benefit obligation, less past
service costs and less the fair value of plan assets out of
which the obligations are to be settled.

The Group's accounting policy for defined benefit plans
is to recognise actuarial gains and losses in the period in
which they occur in full in other comprehensive income
in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits.
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24

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. Interim dividends are
simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and an associate are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing
at the dates of the transactions.
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24

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the translation reserve, except to the extent that the
differences are attributable to non-controlling interests.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount in the reserve relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates or the
year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment loss under ECL model on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e. by geography and
product type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group calibrates
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e. gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment loss under ECL model on trade
receivables (continued)

The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables is
disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis or if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
as at 31 December 2023 was HK$13,841,000 (2022:
HK$13,439,000). Further details are given in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including
the right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting
period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Further details, are given in notes 13, 15 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Income taxes

Significant judgements on the future tax treatment
of certain transactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Company carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are recorded accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation. Further details are
given in notes 10 and 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT

For management purposes, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment, of which the Group
engages in the design, development and production of
general aviation aircraft piston engines and spare parts
as well as the provision of aftermarket services and
support for piston engines. Accordingly, no segment
information is presented.

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

EEDE

MEEMS  A&BR

—ERER

ZREDE  EBRAMEREELE
LEEmFRRS - RAEREE U
REHEEZHUNERTIHRT &
oA WEEH DB E K

mERH

(a) FKESEEFR Kt

2023 2022

—E-= s
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
USA ESJE| 1,473,262 1,376,844
Europe B 237,151 179,005
Others EHh 119,773 109,666
1,830,186 1,665,515

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

LR EERRERERZ

PRl 5y o

(b) FERBEE

2023 2022

—E=H -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
USA ESJE| 1,602,068 1,642,047
Europe B 505,879 503,465
Hong Kong 55 117,076 121,762
Mainland China A [ g 3t 10,029 14,409
2,235,052 2,281,683

The non-current assets information above is
based on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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OPERATING SEGMENT (continued) 4. RESW B
Information about major customers FEERZEH
Revenue from each of the major customers, which REZSFEEPRP W= EINO T #
individually amounted to 10% or more of the Group's EFEMMAERWT 210%a L L
revenue, is set out below:
2023 2022
—EZ=HF S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Customer A ZEA 552,471 540,127
Customer B ZFB 340,209 256,659
Customer C ZHRC 322,694 300,910
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. W& Hfttg A Rl i3 88
NET
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WamamamT
2023 2022
—E-=F B HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(#EE5)
Revenue from contracts with REEEGHZHE
customers
Sale of aircraft engines and spare REEERER Z RIEE N
parts transferred at a point in time REHZHE 1,751,844 1,566,916
Rendering of services transferred over FERFEER 2~ R R
time 78,342 98,599

1,830,186 1,665,515
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

NET (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customer

(a) Disaggregated revenue information

Wt - E UL A Bl s i B8R (2

KEERGHZIE

@ M EHDHF

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET

Geographical markets MEHIS
USA E=H 1,473,262 1,376,844
Europe Eil 237,151 179,005
Others EHh 119,773 109,666
1,830,186 1,665,515

The following table shows the amount of revenue

recognised in the current reporting period that

TR 3R S B A 50
SAARSTHYENEaREN KT

were included in the contract liabilities at the it I
beginning of the reporting period:
2023 2022
—B_= S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Provision of repair and IR B EERERE
maintenance services for
aircraft engines 9,679 8,139
Sales of aircraft engines and ~ FRIEZEENR R BEHIHE
spare parts 7,262 S
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
NET (continued)

(a)

Performance obligation

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the products and payment is generally
due within 30 days from delivery.

Provision of repair and maintenance services
for aircraft engines

The performance obligation is satisfied over time
as services are rendered and payment is generally
due within 30 days from completion of the
services and customer acceptance.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied
or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as
follows:

31 December 2023 ZEZZ=F+"F=+—H
5. W HtUA Rz FEE (2

@ REBHRE
FEBBNEEERBSRAT

HERE BB R
BHEANRRNERETHE B
TRBEERZNEIORRKE
o

TERTRIE BB AR IR B IRES

BHEEMERHARBREEN
BEfREERETHARSE RS
=l g EIPNAE LD

R+tZB=+—HB2EEKHT
BHREME CRERIIY RE
) MR Z BRI

2023 2022
—F—= =S

HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

Amounts expected to be FEHAS FERR IR £ HE ¢

recognised as revenue:

Within one year —FR 11,143 9,679
After one year —F% 65,369 36,127
76,512 45,806
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5.  Ugif Hthix A R Uk s B%E (2
NET (continued)
(a) Performance obligation (continued) () REBHEEE
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to PEEFRTEAETLTERE
the remaining performance obligations which are A—FBRIAWNENZIZE
expected to be recognised as revenue after one HEEITRERAEFERNERN
year relate to repair and maintenance services R E B EEBRERTE -FIB
for aircraft engines, of which the performance whiH & RS S BB R 1 LA
obligations are to be satisfied within five R EFRAEBRERS DA
years. All the other amounts of transaction ERTEANEANEMKTZE
prices allocated to the remaining performance RETREBHEEAN —FRNRIS
obligations relate to sale of aircraft engine Wiio FMEERABAIERIER A
and spare parts, and repair and maintenance BB
services for aircraft engines are expected to
be recognised as revenue within one year. The
amounts disclosed above do not include variable
consideration which is constrained.
An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows: Ha A BB FEDTUT !
2023 2022
—E=F - ——
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Other income =g 1ul N
Bank interest income RITHIE WA 28,052 9,137
Distributorship fee income DEHEUA 783 783
Government grant B 488 B = 143
Insurance claim R ZR A - 1,078
Interest income on loan to an associate M E AR IRENERZ
B WA 373 391
Management fee income BEEWRA 1,753 1,265
Royalty income EHREEWA 4,807 -
Others Hih 743 833
Total other income Hmssur A 36,511 13,630




REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5.

NET (continued)

An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows:

(continued)
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Wt - Bt UL A B s B8R (2

B AR W@ FELRNT @ (&)

2023 2022
—g_-= —E_—
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Other gains, net Hthir =z 358

Gain on deemed disposal of partial RIELHE—BEBEAE
interest in an associate Bl #E w2 F - 3,852
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—REE AT Z2HH - 6,515
Gain on early termination of a lease IRAIARIEFRE ZF) B - 10
Loss on disposal of other intangible assets H& HMMBF & &E 2 B8 - (326)
Fair value gain on an investment property & E&E ¥ % 2 AT EF]H - 700
Foreign exchange differences, net SNEE R I BR R ER 6,968 (2,457)
Others Hih 75 =
Total other gains, net Hhap gz 558 7,043 8,294
Total ast 43,554 21,924
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6.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

BRI A F
FEBRRAENBIOR GHA)

(crediting):
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold* BEGFER A 1,205,791 1,085,381
Cost of services provided* IREIRE 2 A A 56,821 71,646
Write-down/(reversal of write-down)  Z&#UR,~ GHUR#E([E]) *
of inventories** (17,482) 11,557
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -BMERSEBZINE
equipment (note 13) (Htat13) 36,286 32,992
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEEZINE
(note 15(a)) (Btz£15(a)) 14,472 14,194
Amortisation of other intangible HMEFEEE i
assets (note 17)*** (HiaE17) *** 86,669 83,807
Employee benefit expense (including 1BEEF %
directors’ remuneration): (BEEEHH) -
Wages and salaries TEKH® 241,520 216,715
Retirement benefits and BRIREF B R
contributions 16,980 15,584
Defined benefit schemes (note 31) EEaEFIstE| (#1a231) 2,101 3,112
260,601 235,411
Provision for product service EmRIE A SR E
bulletin®*** 49,720 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE -HRE&KHZEZ
equipment* *x** =R 18,749 315
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 3,500 4,364
Impairment of other intangible assets EMEFEE 2~ HE - 101,142
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. BRigAIEF (&

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBEBRRAEF BN GEA)

(crediting): (continued) (#)

2023 2022
—E-=H i
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Impairment losses under expected FAHISEFEERN T ZHERS
credit loss model, net of 38> OpgEEE -
reversal:

— trade receivables (note 21) —EWE ZER™ (MHaE21) 427 1,347
— other receivables (note 24) —HMEWERR (M 3E24) - 4,600
— loan to a joint venture —EEERERENER - 7
427 5,954

g Included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of & FAGEREEREHERA] -
profit or loss.

S Included in “cost of inventories sold” above. L35 FALEXTBEEFEMA

S Included in “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution 55K AR EEmR HEMS ~ THER
expenses”, “administrative expenses” and “research and EHER  TTHEREER K HE
development costs” in the consolidated statement of profit NI
or loss.

****  During the year, total costs of HK$49,720,000 (2022: Nil) ok EROREMRBLASTME BRE
were provided for the inspection and repair of certain 49,720,000 (ZEZZF 1 #|) b
models of aircraft piston engines in connection with a ARETREZEZFREL 2 RE
product service bulletin, which were included in “other REE  ZEMAFAGEBERIA
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit MEEER
or loss.

**x*x% |ncluded in “other operating expenses” in the consolidated rexkx ARG EmRIEAMEEER) -

statement of profit or loss.
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7. FINANCE COSTS 7. HBERX
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MHEHEZomET
2023 2022
—E-= S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on lease liabilities (note 15(b)) FAE&EZF & (MizE15(b)) 13,373 14,001
Other interest expenses HF 2 H 141 75
13,514 14,076
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERTBAEHZME

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

REEBHMORZMBERRTZSFL
WmARA (TEHRA) - EBRABFRAIE
383(1)(a)~ (b) (O R(MF R A E) (W ER
EXZVTER) RAFE2MIRE > KAEE
ZEERITBBHZMENT

2023 2022
—EZ= . ——

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FAET

Fees s 1,420 1,420

Other emoluments: HE -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in e EEREYA G

kind 1,723 2,200

Retirement scheme contributions BRIRETEIHER 18 90

1,741 2,290

3,161 3,710
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EERTHAHZHME @&
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@ BWILEBITES

The fees paid to independent non-executive RELZNFEIFENTESZ

directors during the year were as follows: \|EUWT -
2023 2022

—EZH N

HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Chu Yu Lin, David el 400 400
Li Ka Fai, David FRE 400 400
Zhang Ping R 320 320
1,120 1,120

There were no other emoluments payable to the A EMEN T EILIER
independent non-executive directors during the TEEIMES (ZTEZ2F:
year (2022: Nil). ) o
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8.

(b)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EFRTHAHEZME &
REMUNERATION (continued)
Executive directors and non-executive (b) BITEBKRIENITES
directors
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
& EMR BK
& BN @ AR ME4a%E
2023 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—EZZ=H FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: HITEE.
Li Peiyin FER 36 - - 36
Zhang Zhibiao REE (RZZ_Z&

(appointed on 3 MAE=REZRMT)

April 2023) 27 - - 27
Huang Yongfeng =2 36 - - 36
Jiao Yan %3 36 - - 36
Yu Xiaodong FER 36 1,723 18 1,777
Zhao Yang (resigned #HERIEZ=F

on 3 April 2023) A= HEHT) 9 - - 9

180 1,723 18 1,921

Non-executive director:  JFETES
Chow Wai Kam BE% 120 - - 120
300 1,723 18 2,041
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8.
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Executive directors and non-executive
directors (continued)

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H
SERITRAERKZHME (&

b) BMITEFRIFRITESR (@

Salaries,

allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration

e EMRK B
e BN G BENGES i Eak
2022 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
- FAT TR FHT FAT

Executive Directors: HITEE:
Lai Weixuan (resigned  #RE (W_Z__#&

on 1 April 2022) mA—REHT) 9 - - 9
Li Peiyin (appointed on ~ FHEE (R _T__&

1 April 2022) A —BEZM) 27 - - 27
Huang Yongfeng =2 36 - - 36
Jiao Yan ¥ 36 S = 36
Yu Xiaodong FER 36 2,010 85 2,131
Zhao Yang ik 36 190 5 231

180 2,200 90 2,470

Non-executive Director:  JFUfTESE :
Chow Wai Kam B&% 120 - - 120
300 2,200 90 2,590

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2022: Nil).

FAEMEXMEFTHEARE
BEEANEzZH (T2
FLE) o
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees included one executive
director (2022: one). Details of the remuneration for the
year of the four (2022: four) highest paid employees
who are not a director of the Company are as follows:

haREHES
neREHEERE 4 (2T
£ —R)PTEE-AENL (TF
TR REHES LIEEAT
EE) CHSHENT

2023 2022
—F—= -
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Basic salaries, allowances and BEXFE R REYH S
benefits in kind 7,533 7,748
Performance related bonuses* TERIBAERATEAL 14,713 9,692
22,246 17,440
g The performance related bonuses are determined k3 TERIBERRIEAT 2 EMEENLK

with reference to the operating results and individual

performance during both years.

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

EEERBARFERE -

MEerE Ty EEzE=HEE (LIS
=) AE:

Number of employees

BEEA#

2023 2022

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 BTE
2,000,000 7¢ 1 =

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 E
2,500,0003% 7T - 2

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 BTE
3,000,00058 7T - 1

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 BTE
3,500,0007 7T 1 =

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 E
4,000,000 75 1 -

HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,001 T E
10,500,00038 7T - 1

HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001 TE
13,500,000 7T 1 =
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INCOME TAX 10. PRSI
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made RAFE > ARNAEE T EEARER
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits BEBZREIRWEN > WL BIELE R
arising in Hong Kong during the year (2022: Nil). Taxes FIEREHE (CE 4 . &) c Hihih
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at ERERREFN 2 MIBRAE B LSS
the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in FEXR EEEBHERZRENH.
which the Group operates.
2023 2022
—EZ=HF S
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FHET
Current — Elsewhere: BB —HEthth & :
Charge for the year REME 12,250 15,326
Overprovision in prior years BEFEZBLER (730) (816)
Deferred tax (Note/note 32) IRIERRIB (M5t H15£32) (83,026) (38,077)
(71,506) (23,567)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, Continental
Aerospace Technologies Inc., the Company’s subsidiary in
the United States, began to generate taxable profits. It is
also expected that Continental Aerospace Technologies Inc.
will generate future taxable profits to utilise some of its tax
losses. Therefore, the Group has recognised deferred tax
credit of HK$81,255,000 in profit or loss to the extent that
the tax losses will be utilised.

Wi REE_TS-=f+"A=+—8H
LTEE RARBRERAZHNERF
Continental Aerospace Technologies
Inc. B ELERBRR EF o IRFE S
Continental Aerospace Technologies
Inc. RRBELERRREF > UFHA
HEFTREBE EIL AEEBERE
m RS IR IE IR TR HE 281,255,000
7o IR TEEGERB A AR
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10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Company and its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax credit at the effective rate for

10.

FRig# (&

BREAQNBRENBRBMERRK &
HEEHZAERXFEBRARFRRA
EHRNEAERFEFRERRNE
MIBERHRAOT -

the year is as follows:

2023 2022
T = =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before tax PRI AR A 90,703 27,265
Tax at the statutory tax rates of REEREIERESEZ
respective entities Gzl 22,477 6,816
Tax effect of share of results of an DEBEREEEZ
associate mMETE 1,028 2,097
Effect of withholding tax on interest  FAINR 2K B E=FMF] B U A
income from the USA N & 6,763 7,204
Overprovision in respect of prior years BFFEE 2 B ZEH (730) (816)
Income not subject to tax BIAERBUA (8,500) (10,493)
Expenses not deductible ENEIEE o 4,247 4,594
Tax losses utilised from previous BTHEESARNIERE
periods (9,028) -
Deferred tax assets recognised in AR R R IBERE IR
respect of tax losses and deductible  J1ERFFZ 2B DAV IEIEFRIE
temporary differences previously BE
not recognised (87,763) (32,969)
Income tax credit for the year KREMERIER (71,506) (23,567)

The share of tax charge attributable to an associate of nil
(2022: Nil) is included in “Share of loss of an associate”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DERERBMEATNRNERIAT

(CB- - 8) Bt AGEER

KT DEBME AT EBERIFR -
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DIVIDEND 11. RRE
2023 2022
—E-=F =BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Proposed final — HKO0.5 cent per BEAAKE-—SREER
ordinary share (2022: Nil) 058 (ZE_—_F: & 46,517 =

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023 is subject to the approval of the
Company’'s shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
9,303,374,783 (2022: 9,303,374,783) in issue during
the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on:

12.

BE_ £+ _HB=+—HL®E
E BEAREREEFAATDRER
EEREBEAS LHLEBSOIES

AR ARESEARGS
gl

SEREABASBENREARTZE
KRERSE ABGEREENREAMN
BT B 1T EER9,303,374,783K%
(ZZ "4 :9,303,374,783%%) &2
FEo

BREAREERNNFAERE

2023 2022
—®== B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ZAATEZERERTITE AL
holders of the Company bkl 162,209 50,832
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12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

12. FAREBEREDRFEARGS
RREF &)

Number of shares
;A E 5 4=
2023 2022
—E-=F S

Weighted average number of ordinary & R 1# 152 2

shares in issue during the year =

TEER

9,303,374,783  9,303,374,783

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
Nil).

AEEBRBEE_ST_=F£+_A4
Tt HIEFEETERTETHEL

B CEZZHF | o
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EY
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME -BERRE
Furniture Machinery
Freehold Leasehold and and Motor  Construction
lands Buildings  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles in progress Total
KA &F HE%E  HRRRBE  HE0RE HE ERIR B
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000
FEr &7 FEr FE7 % FET 7 FET
31 December 2023 Z3-ZE+ZA=t-A
At 1 January 2023: RIZZZE-B-R:

Cost A 8,879 151,533 67,440 3,493 364,525 1,618 236,028 833,516

Accumulated depreciation ZithE - (8,079) (24,690) (2,836) (193,795) (1,618) - (231,018)

Net carrying amount REZE 8,879 143,454 42,750 657 170,730 - 236,028 602,498
At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated  RZEZ=%-F—-H»

depreciation NBEHE 8879 143454 4,750 657 170,730 . 236,028 602,498
Additions hE - - - 10 5,953 - 63,702 69,665
Transfers & - - 94 - 184,255 - (184,349) -
Disposals He - - - - (592) - (19,726) (20,318)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ REFHRITE (H5)

(note 6) - (5,618) (2,555) (169) (27,944) - - (36,286)
Exchange realignment EREE 266 655 60 - 600 - 795 2,376
At 31 December 2023, net of RZBZ=F+ZRA=1+-R"

accumulated depreciation NBRsHIE 9,145 138,491 40,349 498 333,002 - 96,450 617,935
At 31 December 2023: RIBZZ5+ZR=1+-A:

Cost [ 9,145 152,491 67,665 3,503 545,506 1,618 96,450 876,468

Accumulated depreciation RithE - (14,000 (27,316) (3,005) (212,594) (1,618) . (258,533)

Net carrying amount REZE 9,145 138,491 40,349 498 333,002 - 96,450 617,935
31 December 2022 ZRZIE+IRE-A
At 1 January 2022: KB "£-B-R:

Cost S 9,358 28,763 68,352 2,102 362,372 1,618 192,694 665,859

Accumulated depreciation Fithe S (4,080) (22,828) (2,654) (175,952) (1618) = (207,132)

Net carrying amount REFE 9,358 24,683 45,524 18 186,420 - 192,694 458,727
At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated  RZE_"%-F-H>

depreciation NBEHNE 9,358 24,683 45,504 48 186,420 - 192,694 458727
Additions AE & = 265 791 5370 - 47,204 53,630
Transfers e - - - - 4,983 - (4943) -
Transfer from investment property BEBRENE W)

(note 14) - 124,500 - - - - - 124,500
Disposals HE - - (307) - (329) = = (632)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ KE:HRE (i)

(note &) & (4,454) (3,038) (182) (25,318) - - (32,992)
Exchange realignment EQRE (479) (1,279) 306 - (360) - 1,073 (735)
At 31 December 2022, net of R-B-“#+-A=+-R°

accumulated depreciation NREFHE 8,879 143,454 42,750 657 170,730 = 236,028 602,498
At 31 December 2022: RZBZZE+ZA=1+-R:

Cost WA 8,879 151,533 67,440 3,493 364,525 1,618 236,028 833,516

Accumulated depreciation RitiE - (8,079) (24,690) (2,836) (193,795) (1,618) S (231,018)

Net carying amount REFE 8879 143,454 4,750 657 170730 - 236,028 602,498

Details of the impairment testing of property, plant and

equipment included in the Germany CGU are disclosed

in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEEERAREEEETHYE K
EREZEREIZNERRENGES
IR EE160°
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14.

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. IREYE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—HZiREE - 123,800
Increase in fair value recognised in RIEmERN R EIE M
profit or loss - 700
Transfer to property, plant and HEEYE -BERKB
equipment (note 13) (Ht£13) = (124,500)

Carrying amount at 31 December

R+ZRB=+—HZKEE - S

December 2022, the
Group's investment property was transferred to

During the year ended 31

property, plant and equipment at the carrying amount
of HK$124,500,000 on commencement of owner
occupation.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land,
buildings and motor vehicles used in its operations.
Leases of leasehold land and buildings generally have
lease terms between 1 year and 75 years, while motor
vehicles generally have lease terms between 2 years and
5 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

15.

BE_Z-_"_HF+°"A=+—BHI#HF
B AEENBREYEREERBMW
FA R LUBRTEI1E124,500,000/8 T E#E
M BEMFRE-

HE
FEEEREBA

FEECHREEETEANE T
WA BFRSEEERIBEEGN M
Xt ABFNEB-—RHIFEETS
FoMAENHEB—RB2FESFo—
RIBRT  NEBE R @A &R LS
ANTEBBRDBEHEHEEE -
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15. LEASES (continued)

(a)

15. & &
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBESEEBA B
Right-of-use assets (a) FHESE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use RAFEE  AEBEGTHEEEN
assets and the movements during the year are as REERESHUNT !
follows:
Leasehold Motor
land Buildings vehicles Total
HELH BF RE L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET FAET FET
As at 1 January 2022 R-B-—%#-F—A 7,920 280,153 960 289,033
Addition FE - - 158 158
Depreciation charge (note 6)  ITEREX (Hzt6) (128) (13,628) (438) (14,194)
Reassessment of a lease term  EFAEHE A/ HiH 2
arising from a change in the S EMERNELS
non-cancellable period of a  #75¥(E
lease - (12,896) - (12,896)
Exchange realignment ERAE 51 1,910 (52) 1,909
As at 31 December 2022 and R_ZE__#&
1 January 2023 +ZA=+—-Bk
T -fF—BF—H 7,843 255,539 628 264,010
Additions V=t - 1,854 580 2,434
Depreciation charge (note 6)  $TEBZ (#156) (128) (13,906) (438) (14,472)
Exchange realignment [ERAE 10 382 20 412
As at 31 December 2023 WZ-E-=
+-B=+—-H 7,725 243,869 790 252,384

Details of the impairment testing of right-of-

use assets included in the Germany CGU are

disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BEERHESELETHNE
REEEETAERN B FM
BRMENRGEMBHRERME
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15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and

15.

e @
FEEEREBA (B
) FHEER
REEE BEAEZREER

the movements during the year are as follows: BT .
2023 2022
—EZ=H =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—HZIREE 294,099 311,018
New leases wmiE 2,434 158
Accretion of interest recognised FERMEBHA EL S
during the year (note 7) (Ht&E7) 13,373 14,001
Payments INE (20,993) (20,190)
Revision of a lease term arising AR HEHBEBEEHEED
from a change in the non- THEREST
cancellable period of a lease - (12,906)
Exchange realignment fE R AR 435 2,018
Carrying amount at 31 R+ZBA=+—HBZKEE
December 289,348 294,099
Analysed into: DA
Current portion RENI D 7,149 7,398
Non-current portion JERENZB D 282,199 286,701
Total =Xl 289,348 294,099

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is
disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

HESRNEBYTIRERRE
B BERERWEESL -
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15. LEASES (continued) 15. 8 @)
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBESEEBA B
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) FHEERERESRNEHRNT

relation to leases are as follows:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Interest on lease liabilities HEsENE 13,373 14,001
Depreciation charge of right- fFRAEEERERY
of-use assets 14,472 14,194
Expense relating to short- HMIHEEEMNER
term leases (included in GtATTHEERER)
administrative expenses) = 400
Expense relating to leases of E{EBEEEEERRANER
low-value assets (included in GtATTHERERER)
administrative expenses) 288 922
Total amount recognised in RiBm A48 %8
profit or loss 28,133 29,517
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed (d) HEREMHERNENR GS
in note 36(c) to the consolidated financial FEERZTMIEE36(C) ©

statements.
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16. GOODWILL 16. HE
USA Germany
CGU CcGU Total
EERE ZERS
EEET EEXET &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2022 RZE2-__#F—H—H
Cost D% 385,770 14,163 399,933
Accumulated impairment KR E (385,770) = (385,770)
Net carrying amount REFE = 14,163 14,163
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of S
accumulated impairment —A—HrmE
MNERRHRIE = 14,163 14,163
Exchange realignment BE 2 2R 22 - (724) (724)
At 31 December 2022 =S
+-8B=+—H - 13,439 13,439
At 31 December 2022 and =
1 January 2023 +ZA=+—8k
—E2-=fF—H—H
Cost B 385,770 13,439 399,209
Accumulated impairment Rt E (385,770) - (385,770)
Net carrying amount REZFE - 13,439 13,439
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of RN_EBT=4F
accumulated impairment —A—H/I A
MNERRHRIE - 13,439 13,439
Exchange realignment fE R - 402 402
At 31 December 2023 M-ZEZ=
+=HA=+—H - 13,841 13,841
At 31 December 2023 I ——
+ZRA=+—H
Cost DN 385,770 13,841 399,611
Accumulated impairment HEtRE (385,770) - (385,770)
Net carrying amount EREFE - 13,841 13,841
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GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill

The Group's goodwill acquired through business
combination has been allocated to the following cash-
generating units (“CGU") for impairment testing:

o General aviation aircraft piston engine business in
USA CGU (“USA CGU"); and

o General aviation aircraft piston engine business in
Germany CGU (“Germany CGU")

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the entire amount
of goodwill was related to the Germany CGU. The
goodwill related to USA CGU has been fully impaired in
prior years.

In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and other intangible
assets disclosed in notes 13, 15 and 17 that generate
cash flows together with the related goodwill are also
included in the respective CGU for the purpose of
impairment assessment.

16.

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

BmeE (&
B R E AR
FERBBEBAHNEZHEESD

EFTIREELEET ((REELSE
7o) BUETTRIERE

. BRAMEREIELZIRES
REENREELEET (1XE
REEEET) &

. ERAMTRETELSFHEER
RERMNREEESE T (EH
BEESET))

N _B_=FRZF”__F+°AH
=t+t—H BHEE2BRESETER
REELEBET - BAXHREELEETT
ERNBECRNBREFEEERHAE

B ETHENMES bk XM
2 EFI13VISRITAREELIRS
TMENME - BERZE ERAEREE
REMEBEEEEZRMBRABMEIRA
ZREEESBTo
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16.

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Management engaged an independent professional
valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, to determine the recoverable amounts
for the impairment assessment. The recoverable amounts
of both cash-generating units have been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by management. The discount
rates applied to the cash flow projections and the
growth rates used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond
the five-year periods of the Germany CGU are as
follows:

16.

[ X7

mERENR (2
EEERRABIUEXGEMHMERT
XL RAERERRQEEERET
ER KO MEREEEET
R EERPREXBREMNER
ARFEZEREEMEE  ZRE
RERANEEEMEN D FRYE
RESER -BRANRERARANH
RERAREHEHRESEEE DA
FHRRETABNERERNT :

2023 2022
—EZ=HF S
Germany CGU EEREELET
Discount rate Hrig= 14.2% 14.9%
Growth rate BREX 2.5% 2.5%
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GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the CGUs as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of cash generating units
of Germany CGU:

Revenue growth rate — The basis used is determined
based on past performance and the expectations of
market development.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Based on the above impairment assessment, no
impairment loss has been recognised on other assets
of the USA CGU or the goodwill of the Germany CGU
for both years since the estimated recoverable amount
for each of USA CGU and Germany CGU is above the
respective carrying amount of its assets. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not result in any impairment
loss.

16.

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

(R 4E6=),

mERENR @)
WN_E_=Fxr_ZE__F+_H
=t+—H RRANREELEETW
FEREETE  TXHEEEET
EERETELETRENSFIRER
EEAMKENSEFTERRK

WAREX-FITAEEDRBERE
RHGERNTAREE -

BEEMNX-BAREESKEREE
MENEESBRERAEFEN —FF
ERNTHENX TREBAHUX
FRHATHHERMEM -

]

WREX-PIERZITEBRRA K
BREAE BB TR 2 E AR

ERN EHBENGE BRNERREE
TETNERAREELEE TRBNMG
st EERESENHEEENBRIR
HEE MEFE ERRSELET
NEMEENBEREELEE TG
B EmEslNEGE EEERS F
MZERRNEAGEAEZLCHT
TEREMRERRE-
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HitE\EEE
Product
technology,
Development licence and
programs completed Customer
in progress  Trademarks programs relationships Others Total
EmiE
g &R R
BEHE #iE  BrmHi ZFRifk Ht EH
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
31 December 2023 —E-=E+-B=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of RIZZ=F—F—-BOmML

accumulated amortisation and MR EERAE

impairment 108,184 219,289 705,252 352,876 1,726 1,387,327
Additions HE 21,196 - 691 - 4,373 26,260
Amortisation provided during REGHREH (H2t6)

the year (note 6) - (9,319) (33,659) (41,606) (2,085) (86,669)
Transfers e (81,596) - 81,596 - - -
Exchange realignment ERHE 1,425 851 9,067 2,605 @) 13,945
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+ZRB=1—H 49,209 210,821 762,947 313,875 4,011 1,340,863
At 31 December 2023: RIEZ=F+"A=+-H:

Cost [N 209,301 267,626 986,399 544,098 17,246 2,024,670

Accumulated amortisation and R EHERAE

impairment (160,092  (56,805) (223452 (230,223  (132%5)  (683,807)

Net carrying amount REFE 49,209 210,821 762,947 313,875 4,011 1,340,863
31 December 2022 Z$ZZ¥+ZB=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of RIEZZF—-B—BHKRS

accumulated amortisation and MR EERAE

impairment 203,831 224,354 739,983 392,944 2,966 1,564,078
Additions KB 18,580 4125 1,875 - - 24,580
Amortisation provided during the year ZE& 1258 (ist6)

(note 6) (9,596) (35,516) (37,473) (1,222) (83,807)
Disposals HE (277) = = = (49) (326)
Transfers i (10,522) = 10,522 = = =
Exchange realignment ERHE (2,286) 406 (11,612) (2,595) 31 (16,056)
Impairment A (101,142) - - - (101,142)
At 31 December 2022 W_E__&+_A=1+—H 108,184 219,289 705,252 352,876 1,726 1,387,327
At 31 December 2022: RIEZ“F+-B=+-H:

Cost [N 268,070 266,867 898,622 544,014 12,856 1,990,429

Accumulated amortisation and R EHRAE

impairment (159,886) (47,578) (193,370) (191,138) (11,130) (603,102)

Net carrying amount REFE 108,184 219,289 705,252 352,876 1,726 1,387,327
Details of the impairment testing of other intangible BEEEEREESE  cHNEMER
assets included in the Germany CGU are disclosed in EEREBARNFBRENFEETRE

note 16 to the consolidated financial statements. HRFRMEE160
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. HthEREE (2
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group BHE_Z-_F+ZHA=+—HIHF
suspended a development program in progress, and EooAEBOHE—HETHERS
the management assessed the other intangible assets BomEBEEENTHEEMEEEE
belong to the program individually and recognised a full B8l WL iEm PSS 28R
impairment loss of HK$101,142,000 in profit or loss. {EE538101,142,0005 7T ©
Except for the above impairment loss recognised during BREMRBEE_ZT__£+_-1
the year ended 31 December 2022, management E—f——EIJJ:EFEEEé”E’JﬁTEJEﬂE%’
concluded there is no impairment of other intangible BEEEIA RIEBEZ=FkKkZ
assets as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, details of ::fﬁ-i—_ﬁ =+—8> Hfﬁmﬂﬁé
impairment assessment are set out in note 16 to the B R ORME /)'Mﬁuﬂéﬁé BENEGE
consolidated financial statements. PSRRI EE
INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. RMEEQRZKE
2023 2022
—EZ=HF S
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FHET
Share of net assets DMRFEE 10,029 14,409
Loan to an associate included in SFARBBEZABE AT
current assets RENER 7,158 6,937

The loan to an associate is unsecured, bears interest at
6% per annum and is repayable within one year. As at
31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

MMELADRHENERDEERT &
FHER6%FRB LAR—FRER-

KRB _=ZFR_ZT-_"_F+°-A1
=t+—H FEEREEBRERE-
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18.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

(continued)

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

18. MREEARZIRE (&

BMERBZFHBNOT

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ ownership interest
Particulars of registration attributable
Name issued shares held and business to the Group Principal activity
RSB &7 s AL R TEERIGHERE
E2Y fRinstE RERME #EEat TEEH
2023 2022
ZEZZE EICH
BTRECHRNBRMHERAT Registered capital  PRC/Mainland 19.7 19.7 Research and development
(TEREER)) of RMB1 each China of engineering technology
and electronics
communication technology
TREGHRRERNERRE ZMELXAER FE,/ RERH IERMEEFBERMN

(TEREER) AR

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
equity interest in JbER# {527 was diluted subsequent to
capital injection by new investors to It IREZZ. A gain

on deemed disposal of partial interest in an associate
of HK$3,852,000 was recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss for that year.

YLk

BHE_E-__F+ZHA=+—HIHF
B> RukEEntrnEZEGEmIsg®
FEBRIEREEHR ZREA#ERD
WHEE - WHRALERELRIZFE
3,852,000 T BN ZFHFREEmKRT
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EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 19. BRATFEFAHRMEEKEZAR

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FigE

2023 2022

—EZ=HF - ——
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value JE E IR AR E » A F(E

Ampaire, Inc. 390 390
VerdeGo Aero, Inc. 1,953 -
2,343 390

The above equity investments were irrevocably
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as the Group considers these investments to be
strategic in nature.

ARAEERS LR AREBRE
ME WEAREMEZERERS
ERBRATEFARMEE K-

INVENTORIES 20. =F8
2023 2022
—E-=HF =2
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Raw materials AR 473,049 369,503
Work in progress TH M 155,650 134,332
Finished goods ECy 17,286 18,348
645,985 522,183
TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BB ZIRF
2023 2022
—E-= 2"
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Trade receivables B E 5 RT 136,103 103,114
Impairment losses BB 1R (6,659) (6,375)
Net carrying amount IRMEEE 129,444 96,739
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, where partial advanced payment is required
for certain customers. The credit period is generally 30
days and each customer has been assigned a specific

credit limit by the Group.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. As at 31 December
2023, the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk
as 40% (2022: 35%) of the Group’'s trade receivables
were due from one of the Group’s key customers. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade

receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and

net of loss allowance, is as follows:

21.

FEURE 5 ARk (2

FEREEFZEEGRMEIERR
ROPMETERMES ARG BMHMRIE
FEEH—RA300 BEXxEHBERE
EROEFEEERE-

AEEBRERBFEZBUPERRER
BREE -EESEERR ARG
FoRZTEZ=F+ZRA=+—H'%&
EEBEETEEETAR RARXK
EENRBKE SRR Z40% (TE -
F135%) BEBEER-—LEEER
ZRE-AEBRUEMRHEBKE H IR
MZERHRAEARTRIEMESR
Ra8 - BB Z IR IALAFHS

REBESHR BREZRRIZEREA
HARMREEERZREDNINT

2023 2022

—E-= S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within 1 month —EBARN 99,239 66,918
1 to 2 months —EWEA 21,786 15,469
2 to 3 months —_E=@A 3,415 4,041
Over 3 months BB =@ A 5,004 10,311

129,444 96,739
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31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

R E B AR (2

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of EWESERAZBREGREEBEEHN
the trade receivables are as follows: T

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

At 1 January w—A—H 6,375 5,755

Impairment losses, net AER IR R AR 427 1,347

Amount written off as uncollectible  #fi#§ AR I E > £%8 (153) (762)

Exchange realignment bE 52 5 £ 10 35

At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 6,659 6,375

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if
past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

RERSEHRERREFERERETRE
D Ut BRAEEER - BHEX
ERNBRAEUGEERANZEERD
MANNEHREHBEE - ZFER B
BMERNMEER SEFBHEBERNR
SHMTSNERBESMH EMRK
MRAREERTEANGERA
Eile—RRME > BREZRRWAER
BB — & R F LUMEE » 1 B A 58 6l
HITEBPARIER
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21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. FRWEZIRR (2
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TREHERBHEREEITNERAR
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a EEEKBESZRIVEERRNER
provision matrix:
As at 31 December 2023 H-E-=%#+=-H=+—H
Past due
al ]
Less than 1t03 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
M# b—EA —ZE=ER ZEAML L
Expected credit loss rate FHEEREX 0.26% 4.24% 18.79%  50.11% 4.89%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) FRE#E (FE7T) 106,351 16,938 2,427 10,387 136,103
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FBERfE E4518 (T 279 719 456 5,205 6,659
As at 31 December 2022 RZIE2E-_-_H+"HA=+—H
Past due
%1 HA
Less than Tt03 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
NH OR—ER —E=ER Z@EAMUL a5t

Expected credit loss rate FHEEEEX 0.24% 1.55% 16.45% 45.12% 6.18%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) EREEE (&) 72,103 12,360 8,382 10,269 103,114
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEEREEEE (FE7T) 171 192 1,379 4,633 6,375
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31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

BHEE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Contract assets arising from sale of ~ $HE R B EHE R BEHFEEN
aircraft engines and spare parts BHREE 24,187 =

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue
earned from the sale of aircraft engines and spare
parts which have been delivered and the receipt of
consideration is conditional on quality inspection and
acceptance by the customer. Upon quality inspection and
acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as
contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables. The
increase in contract assets in 2023 was the result of the
new sales arrangement with a customer.

Included in the Group's contract assets are amounts due
from the Group’s fellow subsidiary of HK$24,187,000,
which are repayable on credit terms similar to those
offered to the major customers of the Group. During
the year ended 31 December 2023, no allowance
for impairment was made since the management
consider that the probability of default is minimal after
assessing the counterparties’ financial background
and creditability. The Group’s trading terms and credit
policy with customers are disclosed in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

L 5L B 3 R B K 5 1 =2 8
ERDMBARIGHEE AW
RERZRETEERERBKER
AFBE-NREFRETEHEREKRRNK
B EISENEENTRENIE
REBBZEM - R_B_=F &4
EERMAEETRFTIMEEZRHN
MR

TEBSNEECQERREAEERZ
B B A B3R IE24,187,00058 7T > 52 =18
EEARHETAERFERFHEUN
EERREE BE_ZT -+
B=+—HLEFEE BHREEEETF
BERZHAFNUYBESSMERARARE
RABANNAREERD ALLRAF S
REABEEREE AEEETANEZ K
AR EEBEREEN G BRAN
55210
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22.

23.

CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 22. BB E &)
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for EHNEERTZA=Z+—HHEHK
contract assets as at 31 December is as follows: Els4EERRBMT -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —FR 24,187 =
AMOUNT DUE FROM A FELLOW 23. FEWRARMEBATFIE

SUBSIDIARY

The amount due from a fellow subsidiary is trade in
nature, unsecured, non-interest-bearing and has credit
terms of 30 days. The following is an ageing analysis

presented based on the invoice date.

BERAMBRAERAEHEZEE
BRI\ AR EEHA0KRTX
RHREZOR2IIMERE DI

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within 1 month —M@ARN 6,506 21,769
1 to 2 months —EMmEA 451 4,917
2 to 3 months i Y= - 135
Over 3 months BiE=1EA - 777
6,957 27,598

No allowance for impairment was made since the
management consider that the probability of default
is minimal after assessing the counterparties’ financial

background and creditability.

HREEBENERZHANMBEE
EMERARRER/ENBIEMNER
o AR B FHRBERE -
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TR RRIA - s R H thFE U AR TR

2023 2022

—E-=F =BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Prepayments AT FRIB 19,526 23,560
Deposits and other receivables W& K Bt EWER R 46,981 21,600
Impairment allowance TE B (13,849) (14,159)
Total =k 52,658 31,001

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and deposits with suppliers. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions, as appropriate. The gross amount
of other receivables under lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
is HK$13,849,000 (2022: HK$14,159,000) because
the receivables are in default or there is information
indicating that the debtors are in severe financial
difficulty.

RehEMEKRERTEARER
EREEFRS - NEREAH &
EERBAFBEBEAITZ2ERAERN
BEBERRRETRED T AER
o L 65 18 3 LU I MR BT AR O R B R 2R
OB TER (B A) - BN E
RAEXXBENBERNEBAGTER
S BERE Fit 2HRBEREEHIR
(BEEERE) BTHEMERER
49%E 713,849,000 T (- —
14,159,000 7T) ©
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24.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
other receivables are as follows:

24.

TR TRIE ~ & R H At FEURARTR
(#)

Lt 78 U BR R > R S SR B B B AN
S ¢

2023 2022

—EZ=HF 2"
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January nw—B—H 14,159 10,554
Provision for impairment losses* BB EERE - 4,600
Exchange realignment bE 7 S (310) (995)
At 31 December K+ZB=+—H 13,849 14,159
& During the year ended 31 December 2022, the impairment G BE_Z”__F#+”-A=+—8Lt

loss of HK$4,600,000 relates to a loan to a third party,
which the related gross amount of HK$13,026,000 was
fully impaired.

The ECL of remaining deposits and other receivables
were assessed under 12-month ECL. These relate to
debtors for which there was no history of default
and the amounts have not been past due. As at 31
December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance on
deposits and other receivables under 12-month ECL was
assessed to be minimal.

FEE - HEEE4,600,0008 T H G
BZARENERER HBER4R%E
13,026,000 7T E B BURE ©

BRTReEREMEBWERNERES
BiEE+-EREREEREEM G
ZERTREACSBNEBZABR K
ZETBHURAP RIE=FK
2+ ZR=+—8 1+
BEMEERENEERAEMBUER
M E BB ET G AR o
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DEBT INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE 25. BATEABEZERHRE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2023 2022
—EZ=HF =
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FHET
Unlisted debt investment, at fair value JEEHEHRE B AFE
VerdeGo Aero, Inc.'s convertible VerdeGo Aero, Inc.Z
bond AR &S - 1,950
- 1,950
The above unlisted investment was mandatorily FIELETRERRGIZAFESA
measured at fair value through profit or loss as the Bastg2 FEEAEHNRESRETIE
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of MR NARERFE -
principal and interest.
The maturity date of the convertible bonds issued by VerdeGo Aero, Inc.Z81T2ZOl#RES

VerdeGo Aero, Inc. was 28 February 2028. ZHEHMRA—E_NE_B_-_+N\H-

The unlisted debt investment was converted into equity JF L EH KB RVerde Go Aero,
investment in Verde Go Aero, Inc. and was irrevocably Inc. BIRREKRE » mwEAnHiHtIsE
designated at fair value through other comprehensive mEATEFAREMEZAKTZ KRR
income as the Group considered this investment to be AEAEEBRAZEREBREEE -

strategic in nature.
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26. RERREEEYMRERFMR
TIME DEPOSITS
2023 2022
—EZ=HF 2"
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cash and demand deposits B& REHRER 242,580 324,013
Time deposits with original maturity WEBRREIFAH A =@
of less than three months when UTFHERER
acquired 3,837 254,890
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREEFEY 246,417 578,903
Time deposits with original maturity UWEBRRIHEH=ZEEMU LN
of more than three months when TEEFE™
acquired 628,863 245,849

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$162,152,000
(2022: HK$185,648,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and one year
depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

RBREHER AEEBUARKE TAR
) HENRERIRITERKERE
MA162,152,0008m (ZEZ " F ¢
185,648,000/ 7T) - AR RAIEMH
KB EMEN AT BRIFPE A
COMNEEIRIEG) ) K (AETE ~ EFE R T B
BEATE) AEBRELAZREREE
THEXFENRTHEAREEBAH

fthEs -

RTRERBESHRTERMRLF
HMERFB -EREFRHARNF—X
E-FAFE BEERNDFRESE
SR E > W2 A8 FE B9 E B 757 AR R 5t
BRTEFREREREIERNE
THERESE B EEREZRIT
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AMOUNTS DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY AND A FELLOW
SUBSIDIARY

The amounts due to an intermediate holding company
and a fellow subsidiary are unsecured, non-interest-
bearing and repayable on demand.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

27.

28.

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

I hEER AR RRARER
BITRIA

BN REERABREZRNE R BN
BARBIER Tt ERAREXREE

FE13 8 3 iRk

RERSHER BNESRMZERH
HMZREDRWT -

follows:

2023 2022
—E-=F =

HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Within 1 month — @B N 86,981 114,706
1 to 2 months —EZmEA 44,596 12,861
2 to 3 months —E={@A 7,001 4,479
Over 3 months BE=1E 2,212 6,187
140,790 138,233

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
normally settled on 45-day terms.

ZERNEZERERBRFTERE —
A IZASH BABR A5 5 ©
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29. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND

20. HfthFEIARTR « FEET & B R R

PROVISIONS
2023 2022
—EZ=H =2

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Other payables (note a) HAET R (1 5ta) 100,202 38,682
Accruals FEST & A 94,586 93,169
Provisions (note b) BE (WEb) 115,722 106,666
310,510 238,517
Portion classified as current portion 3384 RENZF (D BIZB 5 (272,767) (182,692)
Non-current portion JER BN IR (D 37,743 55,825

Notes: Mzt -
(a) Except for deposit payables which are repayable or (a) BREWIISHREBNESEHET EE

refundable upon receipt of the old replaced engines, other
payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term

of three months.

BRERENECESI AMEMLIRK
MAE PHMES=M@A -

2023 2022

—EZZ=H TR HF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Warranty provision RIEEHE 34,283 27,404
Product claim provision EnREBEE 51,686 33,368
Other provisions Hh#E s 29,753 45,894
115,722 106,666

Portion classified as current liabilities ) 482 7 8) & & A 2615 (77,979) (50,841)
Non-current portion JERENZRAD 37,743 55,825

For warranty provision, the additional provisions made
and the amounts utilised during the year amounted
to HK$14,351,000 (2022: reversal of provision of
HK$9,826,000) and HK$7,778,000 (2022: HK$14,608,000)
respectively. For product claim provision, the additional
provisions made and the amounts utilised during the year
amounted to HK$40,939,000 (2022: HK$69,524,000) and
HK$22,617,000 (2022: HK$49,598,000), respectively. Other
movements in the warrant provision and product claim
provision are mainly related to exchange realignment.

MEREREMS  NEEHEIMNE
BFTEEE25%14,351,0008 T
(ZZ T T 4F © ###([E9,826,000
#BT) &7,778,0008 T (T2 -
14,608,000/ 7T) - TLERREHEEM
SOAEEHNENBERFTASEE
2 B7%40,939,0008 T (CE -4 :
69,524,000/ 7T) 522,617,000/ 7T
(ZZTZ 4 : 49,598,000 7T) °1F
EBEERESRERENEMESE
THERAEER-
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OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 29. HthFE(IERT - FEsT &R RIRE

PROVISIONS (continued) (&)
Notes: (continued) Hiat - (&
(b) (continued) (b) (#)

The Group provides warranties ranging from one to three
years to its customers on certain of its engines. The
amount of the provision for the warranties is estimated
based on sales volumes and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on an

ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

The Group is currently involved in legal proceedings related
to product liability claims. An estimate for the probable
costs has been made for these claims as product claim
provision. This estimate has been developed in consultation
with the Group’s insurers, legal counsels, historical
experience and is based upon an analysis of potential
results. In the opinion of the Company’s directors, these
proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements. The product
liability provisions are made for any present expected
product liability claims as a result of the assessment at
the end of the reporting period. The estimation basis
is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where

appropriate.

FEEMAESODEBHRAETFREMH
NF—E=FHNREH -REFHS
BRBEHBEBENEERBREKT
ZRBEE AEBARERNZGLE
B W B BRI G HETERT -

FEEENBAREREERERSH
BERSFR - EHZFRBHOBIAER
RETEE (FRERRBERE =B
EE P AERTEAEENRREAR
RrrBEEnEE REREER I
ENHEBEEGERNIMELH A 27
EERR ZEFEEFBBEIEHE
EENGAVBERREEEATANF
BE-ERETEBEAEDHERSHRT
HEHNERERMARERSEREME
HeAEEFERZEEREE N
BEREHEHETES
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

30. adaE

GBEEREFENT

31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
ket - —B_C
+=8 +=A —H
=+—H =+—H —H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
F#ET FHET FAET
Advances received from T EFF E
customers
Provision of repair and TR RIS BN AEE
maintenance services for RERH
aircraft engines 76,512 45,806 37,392
Sale of aircraft engines and HE RIS ENE R EHT
spare parts 7,800 7,262 -
Total &3t 84,312 53,068 37,392
Analysed into: D
Current R 18,943 16,941 8,139
Non-current JEREN 65,369 36,127 29,253
Total &3t 84,312 53,068 37,392
The increase in contract liabilities in 2023 and 2022 N TE = BT HF/AHAE

was mainly due to the increase in advances received

from customers in relation to the provision of repair and

maintenance services for aircraft engines and the sale of

aircraft engines and spare parts.

BIEMEE RN ERE RS EE
HERBRBURBERBES KR
wHFARRRE R RIEE M-
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS

Continental Motors United Auto Workers
Pension Plan (“UAW Pension Plan”)

The Group has a defined benefit pension plan. It is a
pension plan for the United States employees which
require contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund. This benefit pension plan is funded.
Under the plan, the employees are entitled to monthly
retirement benefits or early or postponed retirement
benefits when they have early or postponed retirements
subject to certain conditions.

Continental Motors Post-retirement Life &
Health Plan (“Life & Health Plan”)

The Group provides certain additional post-employment
medical and life benefits to employees in the United
States. These benefits are unfunded. Under the plan,
the employees are entitled to receive post-employment
medical benefits.

The actuarial valuations of the present value of the
defined benefit plan obligations were carried out as
at the end of the reporting period by Newport Group,
Inc., a qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

31.

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

EFENFERE
KEEEENE S SET ABRAEE
(TUAWSE A 51811)

AEREATCREMNEBAREE &
B AHEEEESN RIS
AMBIEERPFHMHM - ZEA
BRASFHEECRIES - RIFEZTE
BEARELZAWERAKER > 3R
SRFPUBEBRNAN BAEZARAN
B WEUGR KB MEREZERE TR
o

KEESEHBR AR ASRERE
(TAS s E)
rEEREARERMHESE TERIMRAK
BEBEMASEN ZEBARRE
& RIFZETE BEABWEBCRKE
BREN-

EHEEMNFAERRENBEGEET
HEINewport Group, Inc. (& E &5 H M)
REBEHRERABABUGEERER
BEEEITe
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31. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 31.
(continued)

ZEEARE

FIKF o

The trustees review the level of funding in the plan by
the end of each reporting period. Such a review includes
the asset-liability matching strategy and investment risk
management policy. The trustees decide the contribution
based on the results of the annual review.

EFEEAHEE @

WEH KRB STEINE

ZENUEEEAREHNE
BERRERBREERR -
FEBS B

sEARE

REMFREEE

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of
changes in the life expectancy for pensioners and equity

market risk.

The principal assumptions used at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

ZtBAZNERR -RKAENE
HEanBCRRARRATSZRR-

RREMREANTIERREIIUWT

2023 2022
—E-= —E-
Discount rate TIRE
UAW Pension Plan UAW:IR R & 5t &I 4.47% 4.96%
Life & Health Plan ANSREEE 4.65% 4.83%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant RHREFFREFMEBARBRENTEEHRK
assumptions at the end of the reporting period is shown EARIIRAT :
below:
Decrease Increase
in defined in defined
benefit benefit
Increase plan Decrease plan
in rate obligations in rate obligations
EEEN EBEEN
HEIRME HEEE
LlbEEH pe R LEE T & ¥
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
FET FEx
As at 31 December 2023 R-8®-=%f
+=-B=+—H
Discount rate IRE 1 (5,201) (1) 6,201
As at 31 December 2022 P B _FE
+=-A=+—-H
Discount rate RE 1 (4,591) (1 5,472
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS
(continued)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit plan obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a
change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined
benefit plan obligations as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognised as administrative expenses
in the Group’s profit or loss in respect of the plans are as
follows:

31.

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

EFEEAHEE @

FREREDRDRBERREARE
ERRELEZFELHHEREH G
AEREZHEFEHIMEE -BRE
DR ER-—BERRROSLE FIE
HthRBRFEFAE) MIFH -SRED
RO AEREERBAGHEETEHNER

e HZERRAEBETEE
BEgE-

MAERE N AERETRBERRIT
HEEERNMARAZIT :

2023 2022

—E=H 2"
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Current service cost BN EA AR 75 Bl 4~ 1,993 2,896
Net interest expense MEZHFEE 108 216
Net benefit expenses B FEE 2,101 3,112
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31. DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 31. TEHEEAAIEE &

(continued)
The movements of the defined benefit obligations and EEEMNFTEEERSTEEENRQF
the fair value of plan assets are as follows: BEEEBWT !
Defined benefit Fair value of
plan obligations plan assets Total
EEENGEEE HEEENATE At
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEIZE —E°C ZECZE —E°C —ECZE —E°C
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January ®—BA—H 46,878 58,774 (43,248) (48,490) 3,630 10,284
Pension cost charged to profit or 5t A BB HE A
loss
Current service cost EREMA 1,993 2,896 - = 1,993 2,896
Net interest expense/(income) FESWE,/ (BA) 28 2,283 1,525 (2,175) (1,309) 108 216
Sub-total included in profit or loss 5t AJB & f9/Nat 4,276 4,421 (2,175) (1,309) 2,101 3,112
Remeasurement losses/ ARt 2 I 2 TR A9
(gains) recognised in other EfEEHE/ #H)
comprehensive income
Returns on plan assets (excluding ~ stE|EERR (FEEA
amounts included in net interest  F| B3 BB £E)
expense) - - (3,720) 8,172 (3,720) 8,172
Actuarial changes arising from AOBREBELENEE
changes in demographic 23
assumptions a7 = - - 417 -
Actuarial changes arising from BERREDELNEE
changes in financial assumptions &%) 2,523 (14,765) - - 2,523 (14,765)
Actuarial changes arising from RERRELNREREY
experience adjustments 190 (496) - - 190 (496)
Sub-total included in other STAEMZEKE R NG
comprehensive income 3,130 (15,261) (3,720) 8,172 (590) (7,089)
Others Hith
Contribution by employer BEHED - - (2,220) (2,769) (2,220) (2,769)
Benefits paid ENEH (1,506) (1,482) 1,506 1,482 - -
Exchange realignment ERHAE 46 426 (40) (334) 6 92

At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 52,824 46,878 (49,897) (43,248) 2,927 3,630
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DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN OBLIGATIONS 31. TEHEEAHAINEE @)

(continued)
The major categories of the fair value of plan assets of UAWER R E BNt B EEN R FE
the UAW Pension Plan are as follows: ZEEHHNT
2023 2022
—E-=F S
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FAET
Equity instruments AT E 25,342 21,187
Debt instruments &% TR 21,616 20,380
Others Hith 2,939 1,681
49,897 43,248
The Group expects to contribute HK$2,614,000 (2022: AEBEEFREE_ZENE+ZA
HK$3,126,000 for the year ending 31 December 2023) —t+—BUHEFERAZERASIAMH
to pension plans for the year ending 31 December 2024, #2,614,0008T (CEZF  HEZ
Z_=F+ZB=+—HBLEFEHR
3,126,000 7T) °
Since Life & Health Plan is unfunded, there are no plan HRASBESFEARES  WEH
assets for the disclosure for the Life & Health Plan for E_E__ERZE__F+_AH
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. —t—HIEFEULEEMAASZSRES
BB EERE -
The average duration of the UAW Pension Plan as at RIEZ=F+ZA=+—H UAW
31 December 2023 is 11 (2022: 11) years. The average BAREFENEHBPEREAITE (ZF
duration of the Life & Health Plan as at 31 December —TE I NE)  RIEBE_=ZFE+_H4
2023 is 8 (2022: 8) years. =+t—H>  ASBEAENFEHBHRE

BE(CE - I 8F) o
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32. DEFERRED TAX 32. RIERIA
The movements in the Group's deferred tax liabilities and KEREBRBELERBEEREENE
assets during the year are as follows: ER N
Deferred tax liabilities IREREGERE
Fair value
adjustments Accelerated
arising from depreciation
acquisition of and Right-of-use
subsidiaries amortisation assets Total
WM B AT
EENATE
HE MENEREH FEREEE EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2022 i — ey S R~ (202,954) (105,444) (69,036) (377,434)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) REA/ (0FR) BER

to profit or loss during the year BRI IE 26,806 (9,922) 7,927 24,811
Exchange realignment EREE 3,551 1,918 (458) 5,011
At 31 December 2022 R-E-Z&£+-A=+-H (172,597) (113,448) (61,567) (347,612)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) AEA/ (NF) BEH

to profit or loss during the year EERIE (B2t 10)

(note 10) 18,937 (13,758) 2,179 7,358
Exchange realignment ERHE (2,057) (1,415) (97) 3,569
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RIBZ=F+ZA=+—H

31 December 2023 HEERES BRE (155,717) (128,621) (59,485) (343,823)
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32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

32. RIEIRTE (&

Deferred tax assets IRERIEEE
Loss available
for offsetting
against future Provisions Lease
taxable profit and others liabilities Total
AT (KK R TR
FESM T2
B BEREM HEAR A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2022 N _E__&#—HF—H 33,762 57,869 74,285 165,916
Deferred tax credited/(charged) EFA/ (0F) BRN

to profit or loss during the year EERIE 16,777 2,678 (6,189) 13,266
Exchange realignment ERAE (1,523) 192 485 (846)
At 31 December 2022 RZE__&#+”-A=+—H 49,016 60,739 68,581 178,336
Deferred tax credited/(charged) RESA/ (OB BREH

to profit or loss during the year EERE (Hrt10)

(note 10) 67,260 8,911 (503) 75,668
Exchange realignment ERAE 1,091 119 103 1,313
Gross deferred tax assets A ZE=F+"F=+—H

at 31 December 2023 NEIERIBEEELE 117,367 69,769 68,181 255,317
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32.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated

32.

EIEIA ()

wmERIT ETEERBEERE
BERGEMBIRRRPED LT

statement of financial position. The following is an AREBR ZRIERMIBEAGRUNMBRE
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for FRPRIED T
financial reporting purposes:
2023 2022
T = =S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised REREHBARRRER 2
in the consolidated statement of RIETRIEE E R ER
financial position - 6,615
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RARE ISR ITRER 2
in the consolidated statement of BIEFRIBEBEFER
financial position (88,506) (175,891)
Net deferred tax liabilities FEIERIBEEFEE (88,506) (169,276)

At 31 December 2023, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of deductible temporary
differences of nil (2022: HK$3,124,000) and cumulative
tax losses amounted to HK$651,577,000 (2022:
HK$637,774,00) that would expire in one to five
nil (2022: HK$213,093,000) that would expire
in more than five years to twelve years for offsetting
against future taxable profits and HK$422,395,000
(2022: HK$633,380,000) that may be carried forward
indefinitely. Deferred tax assets have not been

years,

recognised in respect of these tax losses and deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the tax losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction
and entity.

RIEZ=F+ZA=+—H &%&
B E IR R R E R RE R A mE
B — 2 A F A B HA A B K 30 BR B
ERHAZT (ZTZTTTH 13,124,000
7t) M R IBE51E651,577,0008 7T
(ZETB -4 637,774,008 7T) ~
AE+_FRIPNRAREHES
T (ZF - "4 :213,093,000%7T)
K2422,395,0008 - (Z&2 ==
633,380,000/ 70) AJ EIBHAAEHN R
AMREEEERELEREBESE - AR
M A E R BN AT A
OB ANIBEIBN R KERR &R
W ERZERBE R R AIRINRE
ERERER TIUREREEE-
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32. RIEMIE (B
There are no income tax consequences attaching KABIBERRIKNKRERNG WP
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its BREBRo
shareholders.
SHARE CAPITAL 33. K%
2023 2022
= =S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: SETE -
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0008% & i%
HK$0.10 each H{E0. 108 Tz E i\ 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
9,303,374,783 ordinary shares of 9,303,374,783f =&
HK$0.10 each H{E0 108 T2 B 930,337 930,337

There was no movement of the issued share capital
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

BE_Z_=FERZZZ”F+°AH
S+ BIER BRETRA LSS
& o
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants to contribute to the
business development and growth of the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees
and attract or retain human resources that are valuable
to the Group. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
options have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled

or outstanding thereunder.

Major terms of the Scheme include:

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide
incentives to the participants.

2. The participants of the Scheme are any individual
being employees, officers or consultants of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including
any executive or non-executive directors thereof
whether employed in Hong Kong or any part of

the world.

34.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

The total number of shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group, must not in aggregate represent
more than 10% of the total number of the
Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10%
limit at any time subject to prior approval given
by its shareholders at a general meeting. The
overall limit on the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme, together with all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other
share option schemes of any member of the
Group, must not exceed 30% of the total number
of the Shares in issue from time to time. No
options may be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group if such grant will result in the said
30% limit being exceeded. As at the date of
this annual report, the total number of securities
available for issue under the Scheme was
461,959,100 Shares, representing approximately
4.97% of the total number of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

34.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted or to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of the Shares in issue as at the proposed grant
date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
which the Board may determine at its discretion
but such date shall not be earlier than three
months after the date of the grant of such option
is made.

An option granted shall remain open for
acceptance by eligible participants for a period
of 28 days from the date of the grant of such
option together with a non-refundable payment
of HK$1.00.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &2 & I F5 iR &R st
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

7. The exercise price of an option shall be the

highest of:

(a)

(o)

the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of the grant of the option,
which must be a business day;

the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
the grant (subject to acceptance) of the
option; and

the nominal value of the Shares.

8. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing on 28 May

2014 and thereafter for as long as there are

outstanding options granted and accepted

pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the

said 10-year period and in order to give effect to

the exercise of any such options.

Share options did not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

As at 31 December 2023 and at the date of approval of

these financial statements, there were no share options
outstanding (2022: Nil).

34.
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35.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 106 to 107 of this annual report.

The reserve fund of the Group represents the statutory
reserve of certain subsidiaries operating as foreign-
owned enterprises in Mainland China. Pursuant to
the articles of association of these subsidiaries and
the relevant PRC Company Law, the subsidiaries shall
make an allocation from their profit after tax at the
rate of 10% to the statutory surplus reserve fund, until
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of
the subsidiaries. Part of the statutory surplus reserve
may be capitalised as the subsidiaries’ registered
capital, provided that the remaining balance after the
capitalisation is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the subsidiaries. The statutory reserve will be
reclassified to retained profits upon the disposal of the
subsidiaries.

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the Company’s shares issued and the
consideration received for the shares issued.

The asset revaluation reserve of the Group represents
gain on property revaluation of HK$130,615,000 upon
transferring an office unit from property, plant and
equipment to investment property in 2019.

35.
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36. REHEREBRME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transaction (@ EEFREXRH
During the year ended 31 December 2023, BHE_Z-_="F+Z"H8=+—
the Group had non-cash additions to right-of- BEFE - AEEEREFR
use assets and lease liabilities of HK$2,434,000 BAEEEZH FEREEEE
(2022: HK$158,000) in respect of lease RIEEEEMNIERESEMNA
arrangements for buildings and motor vehicles. 2,434,000t (Z&2 ==
158,000 7T) ©
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the BE_Z__F+-HA=4+—
Group had non-cash reductions to right-of-use HIEFE  "EEBRMIERKLL
assets of HK$12,896,000 and lease liabilities of BFHEHEZHERAKESEIIFIRE
HK$12,906,000 in respect of early termination of 12,896,000 T REE S
a lease of building. EIFIRE R/ %&12,906,0008
T o
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from b) FMEIFHEENEBREE
financing activities
2023 —E-=
Amount
due to an Amount
intermediate due to
Lease holding a fellow
liabilities company subsidiary
FE {5 R FEft R
ERAR MEBAR
HEafE ] FIE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=%—-F—H 294,099 25,739 5,580
Changes from financing cash flows BERSREH (7,620) (1,288) (5,308)
New leases WHE 2,434 - -
Exchange realignment ERAE 435 666 -
Interest expense FEZH 13,373 - -
Interest paid classified as operating cash flow DEALLELRENBHHE (18,373) - -
At 31 December 2023 i | = =] 289,348 25,117 272
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities (continued)

FERERERMWE @

b) ®MEIBHEENRGEESE @

2022 -
Amount

due to an Amount
intermediate due to
Lease holding a fellow
liabilities company subsidiary
gt i ZNIEES
PRRAE] HBRAE
HEaE B TIB
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTAT TAET
At 1 January 2022 RZE-__—HF—H 311,018 27,495 -
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREL (6,189) (522) 5,580
New leases MHE 158 - -
Lease modified/early termination of lease MEBT/RAKILES (12,906) = -
Exchange realignment ERHE 2,018 (1,234) =
Interest expense HEZH 14,001 = =
Interest paid classified as operating cash flow DEALERESRENEHFE (14,001) = =
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZH+ZA=1-H 294,099 25,739 5,580
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36. ZARERERMNEE E
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) MHERERLLEZE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the FARSERERNEERSR
statement of cash flows is as follows: HAEZEN T ¢
2023 2022
—E=H =B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within operating activities R EEEA 13,661 15,323
Within financing activities PR EEE R 7,620 6,189
Total =51 21,281 21,512
COMMITMENTS 37. KiE

The Group had the following contractual commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

FEBRBREPRBUTEHOKIE !

2023 2022
—B=HF - —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Plant and machinery R 5= o 1% 25 6,567 46,048
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. RANtARB
(@) In addition to the transactions described in (@) KBREEESMBERERWT23/%27R
notes 23 and 27 to the consolidated financial Mz RGN REBMAFEZETT
statements, the Group had the following UTEBARS !
transactions with related parties during the year:
2023 2022
—g=-= =
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Jiok=3 FET FAET
Interest income on loan to an MEHE R TIREHER
associate Z M EBUWA (i) 373 391
Sales to a fellow subsidiary mERMEAFHE (i) 340,209 256,659
Purchases from a fellow BEANB R EHRE
subsidiary (iif) 2,677 1,300
Short-term lease payment AREZERAREHDN
to the immediate holding FRHEE AR
company (iv) - 400
Management fee income B AR A B WA
from the immediate holding ~ EIE&UA
company (v) 1,754 1,265
Notes: Mzt -

(i)

(iii)

Details of the loan to an associate are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The sales to a fellow subsidiary are determined
between the Group and the fellow subsidiary.

The purchase from a fellow subsidiary is determined
between the Group and the fellow subsidiary.

The short-term lease payment to the immediate
holding company is determined between the Group
and the immediate holding company.

The management fee income from the immediate
holding company is determined between the Group
and the immediate holding company.

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

B ERBDRERMNERZF
BRI RS MBERERMEE18.

BREZNBARMEEHEE
ERARAWBARERE

ERAWELARDRBEAE
ERARAWBRARETE

BB ER AR E LR
HE A A& E R BT
RABIETE °

BEREERABDWERERE
B A B AEREPBER
NBEE
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Details of the Group’s balances with an
associate are disclosed in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of the Group’s balances with
an intermediate holding company are
disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the Group’'s balances with
fellow subsidiaries are disclosed in notes
23 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H
38. FAMARH (&

(b)  EARBIEGTS BYRMEIBAERR

(i) AEBERBERNT ZHE
HRHFBRENRGGR
BRI EE180

(i) K%@ﬁiqﬂ%ﬂ“ﬁ““
ZAEER PR B B I AR
BMBERERWE27 -

(i) T=EEEBFRHREBELF

ZHEHEEEERG
BB RRMFF23/%27

(0 TEBTEZEEEMEZRM:

the Group:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FHET
Short term employee benefits HEEREN 2,635 2,522
Post-employment benefits EABEHN 36 70

Total compensation paid to key X FTEEIEE L E 2 RN
management personnel “axE 2,671 2,592

Further details of directors’ emoluments are

included in note 8 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The sale of products in respect of item (a)(ii) above also

constitutes continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

E IEEME 2 E—TFHH

MRS

4=
_I_

HER EX(a)(i)VEA BB EMIF B
EHRAUFB4ABRRENFERE
X5 e
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 39. EMIARE
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEEHR RENzeRITAKRE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting BMH:
period are as follows:
2023 =
Financial assets MBEE
Financial
assets at
Financial fair value
assets at  through other
amortised comprehensive
cost income Total
REBHERT  BRATEHA
SRz Ht2EMEZ
MBEE HEEE At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Equity investments designated at fair value BRAFEAHMEZEREZ
through other comprehensive income RAKRE - 2,343 2,343
Trade receivables e E Z IR 129,444 - 129,444
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary EWREZNBATTIA 6,957 - 6,957
Loan to an associate BB ARRENER 7,158 - 7,158
Financial assets included in prepayments, HABMNRIE BER
deposits and other receivables HMEWIRSNE BEE 33,132 - 33,132
Time deposits THER 628,863 - 628,863
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEEY 246,417 - 246,417
1,051,971 2,343 1,054,314
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H

39. EMT A (E

2023 (continued) ot St - (=)
Financial liabilities MEBaR

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RIS A 51 R
ZHBaR
HK$’000
FAET
Trade payables FETE Z R 140,790
Other payables and accruals HEA R EST & B 149,446
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ANIEIEN V= YNEIE = 272
Amount due to an intermediate holding company FEI R IZERR AT RIB 25,117

315,625
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39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 39. EMTASHE (Z
CATEGORY (continued)
2022 —g_ -
Financial assets MBEEE
Financial
Financial assets at
Financial assets at fair value
assets at fair value  through other
amortised through  comprehensive
cost  profit or loss income Total
BATE
R BATE AHMZE
ClE) FABTEZ ¢
HHEE MHEE HEEE =
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Equity investment designated BATEst ARMt2E
at fair value through other Wz BRARE
comprehensive income - - 390 390
Debt investment at fair value BRATEFABRZ
through profit or loss BELRE - 1,950 = 1,950
Trade receivables B E Z R 96,739 = = 96,739
Amount due from a I EE NG S
fellow subsidiary 27,598 - = 27,598
Loan to an associate mHEARRMNED 6,937 = = 6,937
Deposits and other receivables BeREMERRR 7,441 = = 7,441
Time deposits EHER 245,849 = = 245,849
Cash and cash equivalents ReRELEEY 578,903 = = 578,903
963,467 1,950 390 965,807
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 39. EMTASHE (Z
CATEGORY (continued)
2022 (continued) —EZ"F #E)
Financial liabilities MEBaR
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
b S W
FERZ
nHaf
HK$'000
FET
Trade payables BB SRR 138,233
Other payables and accruals HM A R FE 5t & A 95,489
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary FERNREZRKEABRE 5,580
Amount due to an intermediate holding company FET R EZE A B FRIE 25,739
265,041

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of
equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income, debt investment at fair
value through profit or loss, trade receivables, balances
with fellow subsidiaries and an intermediate holding
company, loan to an associate, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, time
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

40.

EMITRAZATFERATFEER
HIE
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 4. ERMTAZAFERAFEER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL HE &)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The following methods and assumptions were used to MTAERBRARGRZAFES
estimate the fair values of financial assets measured at EMBEENATE
fair value:
The Group invested in certain unlisted equity and debt FEEREREETHF LTRARE
investments. The Group has estimated the fair value BRE-AEEZRTPATZFNET
of these unlisted equity and debt investments with BREFZEFELITREAREBREDN
reference to the issued prices of recent transactions and NEE WBRIFVBRE RS AT
unlisted debt investment with reference to discounted EETEBERENRFE-
cash flow method.
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs UTFAR_E _=ZFEx_F -
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a +ZRE=+—HEmIAGERRN
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2023 ERTIEZHABBERTEE B
and 2022: EZDHE :
Significant Sensitivity of
Valuation technique  unobservable input Range fair value to the input
BEAFTHEZE #HE BAHBRATEMNHEE
fh (BBl BAYE
Unlisted equity investments Market approach Issued prices of recent HK$40 to 1% (2022: 1%)
transactions HK$282 increase/decrease in
(2022: HK$40) issued prices of recent
per share transactions would result
in increase/ decrease in
fair value by HK$23,000
(2022: HK$4,000)
ELmRERE miGE* R ZNETE SRAERTE EHRENETEEN/
2827 1% (CEZ2F:
(Z2ZZH: 1%) HEHATE
407%70) B,/ #023,000% 7
(ZEZZF 4,000

A7)
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Unlisted debt investment

FLHRERE

Valuation technique

fhER
Discounted
cash flow method

TRREREE
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4. TRTARAZATFERAITFESFR

HE &)

Significant
unobservable input Range
EXFRARER #E

BAHE

Yield rate N/A
(2022: 7%)
WisE eyl
(ZEZZF:
7%)

Sensitivity of
fair value to the input

BAUBATENBEE

N/A (2022: 1%
increase/decrease
in yield rate would
result in decrease/
increase in fair value
by HK$104,000/
HK$110,000)

TER(CEZZH!
Wit/ 0%
BERATERD
/1 1M104,000% 70
/110,000%70)
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40.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

4. TRTAZATFERAITFESFR
HE #&

DT EER

TRITAEEESRMTANRFES
EREM®K

BT EEEE
Fair value measurement using

AHEHERA

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

inactive  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXTHE EXTTER

ERHRRE BAYE BARE

(BE-8) (E=4) (E=#) L

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=f+-A=+-H

— ——

Equity investments designated at fair value BATEt AEtZEREZ

through other comprehensive income RAEZE - - 2,343 2,343
As at 31 December 2022 RZE-_"F+-F=1—H
Equity investment designated at fair value BATEt AEtZEREZ
through other comprehensive income REZE = - 390 390
Debt investment at fair value RATEHAER 2 ERRE
through profit or loss - - 1,950 1,950
- - 2,340 2,340

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2022:
Nil).

FROMBEENATEFEBLERL
F—MKRBE_MRZBEEBE > TEEBA
FEHE=R(CE__F:8) -
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 40. EMTAZATERATEEZLR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL HE @)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level FRCBFZRAFENENEENT :
3 during the year are as follows:
2023 2022
S S
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Unlisted equity investments ELHRERE
At 1 January w—A—H 390 389
Converted from debt investment HInRERKRE 1,953 =
Exchange realignment R A - 1
At 31 December W+-B=+—H 2,343 390
Unlisted debt investment ELrFEHERE
At 1 January Hw—A—H 1,950 1,938
Converted into equity investment EMARAKRE (1,953) =
Exchange realignment E R sR % 3 12
At 31 December w+=ZBA=+—H - 1,950

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

W _E _=FF_B__4+_HA
—t+—H AxEBWESMFMIZAFE

STENMBAR
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
lease liabilities, cash and cash equivalents and
time deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities, such as trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

As most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the operating units, the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

41.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. HMBRMEEBERBE @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) E8RAME &)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging RSB FE O R FEASIEER
The tables below show the credit quality and the TRIRENRAEEGERRK ZEE
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's BEkReEEARMO ZEEK
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due RFBERTZA=+—HZBHER
information unless other information is available without BRIFHMERERENHAIMLER
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification KB TENAIER) RELBED
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross o2V cRAMBEE ZIREAR
carrying amounts for financial assets. Be
31 December 2023 —Eg-=+-HB=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 B A fE
B 2RBEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
- B R k[R5 L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET FAT FAT FAET
Trade receivables* FE Wt B 5 AR 7+ - - - 136,103 136,103
Contract assets* BREE - - - 24,187 24,187
Amount due from a fellow A EN I YNSIE Y
subsidiary* - - - 6,957 6,957
Loan to an associate — Normal** B E AR RENER—
IEE 7,158 - - - 7,158
Financial assets included in FABRMRE e REM
prepayments, deposits and other EUWERNIBEEE
receivables
- Normal** T 33,132 - - - 33,132
- Doubtful** —A]REr* - - 13,849 - 13,849
Time deposits TEHRER 628,863 - - - 628,863
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY
- Not yet past due —HRAH 246,417 - - - 246,417
915,570 - 13,849 167,247 1,096,666
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

MBERREEERKREE @)

E8ARE @
REEBEMORFHEER (2

(continued)
31 December 2022 I F+ZHR=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12/8 A Bl
EEEE 2HBEHEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—MEE EIMEE EME 1A% ast
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FErT
Trade receivables* eI E 58K - - - 103,114 103,114
Amount due from a fellow EWEZKERBmIE
subsidiary* - - - 27,598 27,598
Loan to an associate — Normal** SR ERENER -
g+ 6,937 - - - 6,937
Financial assets included in SFABMTIE e R EAM
prepayments, deposits and other YRR BEE
receivables
- Normal** e 7,441 - - - 7,441
- Doubtful** — g - - 14,159 - 14,159
Time deposits EHER 245,849 - - - 245,849
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY
- Not yet past due — e K HA 578,903 - - = 578,903
839,130 - 14,159 130,712 984,001
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(continued)

* For trade receivables, contract assets and amount due
from a fellow subsidiary which is trade receivable in nature
to which the Group applies the simplified approach for

impairment, information is disclosed in notes 21, 22 and 23
to the consolidated financial statements.

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, and loan to

an associate is considered to be “normal” when they are

not past and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the
financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows

from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank loans and loans from a fellow subsidiary and an
intermediate holding company. The Group’s policy is to
minimise borrowings.

41.

31 December 2023 — &2 - =%+_"F=+—H
MERAREREEERBR @)

E8RRE @
R e BRI O] R FAS PR R (12)

* MAEERABCRESZZBEE
PRF - ENEERBRKREZ KRR
MENBRRAANBARDREMS
ERENRENGAMBRERWE
21~22/23°

*x TR IR 12 5 K E At B8 WAR R
NP BEEBRRRBHEQARRMNE
RNEEARNAKRBHELEER K
BENSEILCRMBEEZEER
BARIRIB R R (ER) - BR
BEEZEEERGRMRAAIER -

B BE
FEBFMBEEERBRE TAEE

ExNAR ZTATEEMIA
RMBEE (NEWEZEDR NI
HEEEEENTEGTIRER=E
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RRERZNBAR RFEERA
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

41. HERAKEEAEREE &)

EERRE (&
B E (4

RBERR ZEBERBITNER
TRARZMBREEERHBERAOT -

2023 g =
Less than 3 to less than 1to 5 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=F

RERE DREZ@A LR+ ZfER —Eif BENE At
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Amount due to an intermediate holding company FEfS PR A BIFE 25,117 - - - - 25,117
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ENRAMBABSTIE 272 - - - - 272
Trade payables RNEERA - 140,790 - - - 140,790
Other payables and accruals HithE TR ER 38,696 110,750 - - - 149,446
Lease liabilities HE&E - 5,235 15,032 77,311 374,190 471,768
64,085 256,775 15,032 77,311 374,190 787,393

2022 =

Less than 3 to less than 1t05 Over
On demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=F

RERE DR=@EA LR+ EAR —ZRf BEMNE At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FiET FET FHET FiET FET FHET
Amount due to an intermediate holding company e R A BRI 25,739 - - - - 25,739
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary ERRZNBADZE 5,580 S S = S 5,580
Trade payables N - 138,233 - - - 138,233
Other payables and accruals HitEARIREAER - 95,489 - - - 95,489
Lease liabilities HEaE S 5119 15,492 75,410 393,045 489,066
31,319 238,841 15,492 75,410 393,045 754,107
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. HMBRMEEBERBE @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) E8RAME &)
Capital management BhEE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital FEBRBEAEENEEBR AER
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to FEBEGREZRNED BHER
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy BRERNEBEARLE U FHEREE
capital ratios in order to support its business and ABRRBIERKERE-
maximise shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes FEBERBEKEERINES REME
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic ENRBREE EEHBARGEHEBILE
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying HAR REFRABRELREE A&
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the BT RAEARRIKENKE B
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, RRBREIERNBFITHMR - AEET
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The EXHINEMIIBHEMzE LT K
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital HE_Z -Gk -F+°AH
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, =t+—HUEFE - BEABEZEE K
policies or processes for managing capital during the R EmOgE o
years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which AEERAELABBEXEREEALRS
is the interest-bearing debts, including lease liabilities, HoMEBEABEXRLUFEER (B
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company HES® MUARRAEE ARGER
plus the interest-bearing debts. Mt B EHE 2 MtE -
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods REBESHRNEABRRRTT !
were as follows:
2023 2022
—E= B
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FHET
Lease liabilities HE&R 289,348 294,099
Interest-bearing debts T EER 289,348 294,099
Total equity MR 2,995,461 2,818,891
Total equity plus the REmMNst RER
interest-bearing debts 3,284,809 3,112,990
Gearing ratio BEAREBE 8.8% 9.4%
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42,

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 42.

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

T AR MRBRRER

ERARTARKRSHRNY BT RIE

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as HEREIUWT :
follows:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME--BEREZE 117,076 121,762
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AT ZKRE 2,506,119 2,403,801
Total non-current assets EREEELE 2,623,195 2,525,563
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other BAME Rk
receivables HhFE W AR TR 9,428 3,633
Time deposits EHEMR 465,537 174,485
Cash and cash equivalents BE RIS EY 2,270 214,649
Total current assets MENEEMEE 477,235 392,767
CURRENT LIABILITIES mHas
Other payables and accruals HEN R ETE B 3,435 3,848
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NG EE] 3,607 3,609
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary EANIEE N EPNEERE] - 5,580
Total current liabilities MR ERE 7,042 13,037
NET CURRENT ASSETS MMEERE 470,193 379,730
Net assets BEEZRE 3,093,388 2,905,293
EQUITY g
Issued capital BEITRE 930,337 930,337
Reserves (note) & (i at) 2,163,051 1,974,956
Total equity W ARE 3,093,388 2,905,293
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 42. ZEATGIMIERRAER &)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: MIsE :
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RABRERARWMT -
Retained
Share Asset profits/
premium revaluation  Contributed (accumulated
account reserve surplus losses) Total
B
RIVEER BESGHE BARR (BBEER) a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2022 RIEZZE—F—H 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 (12,060 1,981,527
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEREEBE
loss for the year FEEE] - - - (6,571) (6,571)
At 31 December 2022 and A_BE_F
1 January 2023 +ZA=+-HkK
- =%—-F—H 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 (18,631) 1,974,956
Profit and total comprehensive FEFHR2EN R
income for the year FEEE] - - - 188,095 188,095
At 31 December 2023 AZBT=F
+ZA=+—H 1,857,729 130,615 5,243 169,464 2,163,051
The contributed surplus of the Company represents KRB ZBARGABEAEIREBEER
the excess of the consolidated net asset value of Far B4 BEFar East Aluminium (B.V.1.)
East Aluminium (B.V.l.) Limited on 20 November 1991, LimitedW 2 2 E & 17 IR A » 32T B
when its entire issued share capital was acquired by RAR—AA—EFE+—BZ+HZEK
the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation, over SEEFEBAEFAWBEAEMET
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in ZRMEABZEE YEHRNET
consideration for such acquisition, net of accumulated FEREZAADRBEE -RESD
losses of the Company set off in the prior years. Under RE—NAN—FRAE KRB ZH
the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed ABBREETER I HIKTEZR
surplus of the Company is distributable to shareholders ==
under certain circumstances.
COMPARATIVE INFORMATION 43. LHEEEH
Certain comparative financial information has been ETHEBRYBEHMCENDE UF
reclassified in order to conform with the current year's BRFENEFHFH e
presentation.
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 44. MBHRRBRZHLE

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28
March 2024.

HEMBRXREN _-_BE_NE=A
“HN\BEEESHAERRETE-
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY A S iZHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified
as appropriate, is set out below. This summary is not part of the
audited financial statements.

FAEEBELEMBEENXEREENS
BRANT HEEEETEEERMBR
ROUWEBFBEEEY EMSE - LEHET
IFEBZM BRI -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-—HLEEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= “EICF EI-F ZBEITF E-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET F#ET FHET
RESULTS ¥
Revenue & 1,830,186 1,665,515 1,416,409 1,246,809 1,458,003
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX IRHAET (518) 90,703 27,265 (24,790)  (808,530) (83,833)
Income tax credit/(expense) FBHESR/ (%) 71,506 23,567 (31,182) 51,792 29,817
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEHH, (FE) 162,209 50,832 (55,972) (756,738) (54,016)
Attributable to: TH AL
Owners of the Company AAEIMEE 162,209 50,832 (55,972)  (756,738) (54,016)
As at 31 December
®+=ZB=+—-H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZBCZz§ —EZ-"fF BE_-f “E"TFE “T-AFE
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET F#ET FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Total assets BEMBE 3,979,064 3,799,848 3,763,258 4,178,556 4,772,624
Total liabilities aRMEE (983,603) (980,957) (978,797)  (1,332,416)  (1,198,930)
2,995,461 2,818,891 2,784,461 2,846,140 3,573,694
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